
 

 

 

 
To: Members of the Cabinet Date: 

 
21 July 2021 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824712568 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the CABINET to be held at 10.00 am on TUESDAY, 
27 JULY 2021 BY VIDEO CONFERENCE. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G. Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF 
THE MEETING 
 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting.   
 

3 URGENT MATTERS   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972.   
 

4 MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 12) 

 To receive the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 29 June 2021 (copy 
enclosed).   
 

Public Document Pack



 

5 LLANGOLLEN 2020 CASTLE STREET IMPROVEMENT SCHEME  (Pages 
13 - 82) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Brian Jones, Lead Member for Waste, 
Transport and the Environment (copy enclosed) seeking Cabinet approval to 
proceed with the implementation of the Llangollen 2020 Castle Street 
Improvement Project. 
 

6 FINANCE REPORT  (Pages 83 - 100) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets (copy enclosed) detailing the 
latest financial position and progress against the agreed budget strategy. 
 

7 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 101 - 104) 

 To receive the enclosed Cabinet Forward Work Programme and note the 
contents.   
 

PART 2 - CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

 No items.   
 

 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillor Hugh Evans 
Councillor Bobby Feeley 
Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts 
Councillor Richard Mainon 
 

Councillor Tony Thomas 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill 
Councillor Brian Jones 
Councillor Mark Young 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



 

 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for 
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which 
has made an application for financial assistance’. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held by video conference on Tuesday, 29 June, 2021 
at 10.00 am. 

PRESENT 
 

Councillors Hugh Evans, Leader and Lead Member for the Economy and Corporate 
Governance; Huw Hilditch-Roberts, Lead Member for Education, Children’s Services and 
Public Engagement; Brian Jones, Lead Member for Waste, Transport and the 
Environment; Tony Thomas, Lead Member for Housing and Communities; 
Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets, and 
Mark Young, Lead Member for Planning, Public Protection and Safer Communities 
  
Observers:  Councillors Joan Butterfield, Gwyneth Kensler and Paul Penlington 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Corporate Directors: Communities (NS) and Economy and Public Realm (GB); Heads of 
Service: Legal, HR and Democratic Services (GW), Finance and Property (SG), and 
Business Improvement and Modernisation (AS); HR Services Manager (LD); Lead 
Business Partner – Organisation Development (AM); Strategic Planning Team Manager 
(NK); Strategic Planning and Performance Team Leader (IM) and Committee 
Administrators (KEJ & SLW [Webcaster])  

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
Councillor Bobby Feeley had been unable to join the meeting (which was being 
held via video conference) due to technical difficulties. 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
No declarations of interest had been raised. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS  
 
The Corporate Director: Communities provided an overview of the current situation 
with regard to Covid-19 in Denbighshire.  As of mid-June Wales had seen an 
increase in cases and positivity rates.  England had already seen several weeks of 
rapid growth and as with previous waves of coronavirus Wales was some two 
weeks behind.  The increase had been highest in young people who had not yet 
been vaccinated and typically had more social interaction.  It was uncertain how 
much the vaccination programme had broken the link between infection, 
hospitalisation and death and it would be 2/3 weeks before the trajectory of the 
virus became known.  Denbighshire’s rolling weekly case rate was 104.5 per 
100,000 population (an increase of 27% on the previous week) and above the 
Welsh average of 53.1, with five of the six North Wales local authorities above the 
Welsh average.  Denbighshire had started to see increases of positive cases in 
care homes and schools which was expected to continue and due to a data lag the 
recent figures were expected to be an underestimation of the current position.  
Members would be kept informed on the continuing situation. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
4 MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 25 May 2021 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 May 2021 be received and 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

5 MENTAL HEALTH IN THE WORKPLACE  
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report providing an overview of the 
Council’s proposed approach to supporting Mental Health in the workplace and 
recommending adoption of the Mental Health Policy and associated documentation. 
 
The importance of supporting mental health in the workplace was highlighted 
together with key objectives to improve mental health awareness, tackle the causes 
of work related mental ill health, create a workplace culture to talk about mental 
health, and support employees experiencing mental ill health.  In order to achieve 
those objectives the Council had formally signed up to the Time to Change Pledge 
with an action plan to tackle mental health stigma and discrimination and support 
mental health.  A draft Supporting Mental Health in the Workplace Policy had been 
developed together with Mental Health Guidance for Managers.  Further guidance 
to managers had been provided on how to hold a sensitive conversation with staff 
who may be experiencing mental ill health.  Together those actions could help 
reduce the severity, duration and quantity of mental health in the workplace.  The 
draft policy and associated documentation had been agreed by the Senior 
Leadership Team and Trade Unions and recommended to Cabinet for adoption by 
the Joint Consultative Committee for Health and Safety and Employee Relations. 
 
Cabinet welcomed the report and proactive approach taken to tackling mental 
health in the workplace, particularly given the impact of the pandemic and changes 
to work patterns.  Members were keen to ensure managers were also being 
supported to undertake their role and questions were raised in that regard together 
with the challenges of supporting staff working remotely and monitoring outcomes. 
 
Officers responded to members’ comments and questions as follows – 
 

 the training programme to enable managers to better support employees had 
commenced and some of that training had already been put into practice 

 support provision for managers had been detailed in the report and included 
training and guidance, with HR specialists and business partners working 
closely with mangers on mental health issues and stress in the workplace 

 work was ongoing to identify Wellbeing Champions in services and some Mental 
Health First Aiders had already been trained and had put their skills into use 

 steps taken by services to enable managers to keep in touch with staff and 
check on wellbeing had been discussed at a recent Middle Managers 
Conference in order to share and promote good practice across the authority 

 a Mental Health Wellbeing Survey would be undertaken in September to 
ascertain the current position in terms of mental health which would be followed 

Page 6



by regular surveys every 1 – 2 years to measure progress and ensure actions 
were being effective in improving mental health wellbeing. 

 
RESOLVED that the Mental Health Policy, Mental Health Guidance for Managers 
and Guidance on Holding a Sensitive Conversation about Mental Health be 
adopted for the Council. 
 

6 ACT TO REDUCE DOMESTIC ABUSE  
 
Councillor Mark Young presented the report providing an update on the Act to 
Reduce Domestic Abuse Corporate Priority and recommending adoption of the 
Domestic Abuse Policy for employees. 
 
The final business case for the Act of Reduce Domestic Abuse priority had been 
agreed in October 2019 and although work was initially delayed on the project due 
to Covid-19, since September 2020 considerable progress had been made.  The 
project comprised of 13 work streams and in the last six months progress had been 
concentrated on 9 of those work streams (a summary of each had been provided) 
with the remaining work streams to be progressed in the next financial year. 
 
The Council condemned all forms of abuse and violence and was committed to 
developing a workplace culture of zero tolerance for domestic abuse and/or 
violence. A draft Domestic Abuse Policy had been developed to support employees 
who were experiencing domestic abuse or had experienced it in the past and 
included guidance to managers on how to recognise signs of domestic abuse and 
what support was available to staff.  The draft policy had been agreed by the Senior 
Leadership Team and Trade Unions and recommended to Cabinet for adoption by 
the Joint Consultative Committee for Health and Safety and Employee Relations. 
 
During debate Councillor Brian Jones questioned the initial delay in progressing the 
project (which had been cited as due to Covid-19) despite concerns there would be 
an increase in domestic abuse cases/incidents during the coronavirus pandemic.  
Further questions were raised regarding the increase in the number of cases dealt 
with over the last twelve months together with the proposed main policy changes. 
 
The Lead Member and officers responded to questions as follows – 
 

 the initial delay on some of the work to progress the Act to Reduce Domestic 
Abuse priority had been due to the need to work with partners etc. 

 a domestic abuse policy had already been in place but it had been reviewed 
taking into account the increase in remote/agile working and the learning from 
dealing with issues arising during Covid-19; the work in progressing the Act to 
Reduce Domestic Abuse priority had also informed the revised draft policy 

 the revised policy was more thorough and provided greater clarity, offering 
further guidance to support both managers and employees, and contained all 
necessary information in one document.  A key change included the introduction 
of five days domestic abuse leave to further support employees 

 reports of domestic abuse had increased but assurances were provided that any 
initial delay in progressing the project had not impacted negatively on the 

Page 7



reaction and responses required.  Reports were dealt with promptly and 
professionally and that process continued throughout the pandemic 

 the Lead Member referred to his quarterly update to members which detailed 
the figures and increase in domestic violence and rationale behind those figures 
– he agreed to resend that information to members. [The next agenda item on 
the Annual Performance Review also included data on domestic violence.] 

 
The Lead Member highlighted the importance of an open discussion on domestic 
violence and to encourage incidents being reported.  He was satisfied with the work 
being carried out and believed the partnerships and internal skills were in place to 
better deal with the issue moving forward. 
 
RESOLVED that the Domestic Abuse Policy for employees be adopted for the 
Council. 
 

7 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2020 TO 2021  
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report together with the draft Annual 
Performance Review (APR) for 2020 to 2021 prior to its submission to Council. 
 
Cabinet was guided through the APR which had expanded to combine a number of 
previously separate reports into one document, meeting the Council’s requirements 
under a number of pieces of legislation including the new Local Government and 
Elections (Wales) Act 2021.  The report provided a retrospective evaluation of the 
Council’s success in delivering against its plans during 2020 to 2021 and looked 
ahead to what could be delivered in 2021 to 2022.  It included narrative on progress 
in delivering corporate priorities, including the current status and programme 
success. The Project Register and Corporate Risk Register had also been included.  
The APR had been considered by Performance Scrutiny Committee who had 
requested details of individual scheme costing in the funding section of the report 
relating to Highways and Education spend which was currently being collated. 
 
The Strategic Planning Team Manager provided a summary of progress against 
priorities and the Strategic Planning and Performance Team Leader provided an 
overview of the new corporate health section of the report in order to satisfy the 
need to self-assess under the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 
 
Cabinet considered the APR and main areas of debate focused on the following – 
 

 the Leader highlighted that the Council had deliberately set an ambitious 
Corporate Plan and was pleased to note the progress made, whilst 
acknowledging that some priorities, such as digital connectivity, were outside of 
the Council’s control.  With regard to the new corporate health section in the 
report he stressed the need to appropriately balance that element against 
delivery of those priorities which had been based on engagement with residents 
and their expectations.  Officers agreed confirming that the performance 
objectives had been deliberately placed at the forefront of the document 

 Councillor Mark Young referred to the Syrian Vulnerable Person Resettlement 
Scheme and Cabinet’s endorsement to continue supporting refugees through 
the Global Resettlement Programme – given the concerns raised regarding 

Page 8



access to healthcare and quality housing he asked that those issues be included 
in the APR in order to capture the response to those concerns.  Officers agreed 
to review the wording as requested but highlighted that some of the issues were 
beyond the Council’s control although the Council would look to encourage and 
pursue other organisations to fulfil those responsibilities 

 whilst Ruthin extra care housing had experienced some obstacles with 
challenges in securing a contractor, overall there was confidence that the project 
would progress within the timescale of the current Corporate Plan 

 in responding to questions from Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts attention was 
drawn to domestic violence figures showing an increase in the cumulative 
number of repeat victims of domestic violence in Denbighshire, from 517 to 515 
in Quarter 4 (an increase of 7.6% on the previous year).  The amount of work 
undertaken in this area was highlighted in terms of increasing awareness etc. 
and therefore a change in the figures was expected and the Covid-19 
restrictions would likely have had an effect on domestic crime.  Although he did 
not have the details of the domestic abuse figures to hand, Councillor Mark 
Young reiterated that his quarterly report to members provided a breakdown and 
analysis of those figures which he would re-circulate to members 

 the Council worked regionally with regard to social care funding and fees were 
market based and had increased over time and above inflation.  It was an area 
which was being actively considered but was very much dependent on the work 
being done with Welsh Government around funding for social care 

 child obesity was very much an issue of concern and whilst the regional event 
planned to examine the issues affecting children had been paused due to 
Covid-19, the intention was to resume that work at a future point 

 the Use of Plastics Task and Finish Group had completed its work and whilst the 
reduction of plastic was still an issue, it no longer had its own work stream and 
had been subsumed into the Climate Change and Ecological Change Strategy 

 obstacles experienced in progressing biodiversity projects had largely been due 
to the planned aspects of the project which required the use of volunteers which 
had not been possible due to social distancing restrictions, however as those 
restrictions eased progress would resume and there was no risk to the project 

 a new volunteering policy for the Council had been approved followed by a 
relaunch of the volunteering web pages to support the process.  Assurances 
were provided that the Council worked closely with DVSC and the distinction 
between Council volunteering and DVSC supporting county wide volunteering 
had been highlighted with the policy and recognised. 

 
RESOLVED that, subject to any agreed changes, Cabinet confirms the content of 
the draft Annual Performance Review 2020 to 2021. 
 

8 FINANCE REPORT (MAY 2021/22 - INCLUDING BUDGET SUMMARY REPORT 
2021/22)  
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report detailing the latest financial 
position and service budgets for 2021/22 together with the Budget Summary Report 
for 2021/22.  He provided a summary of the Council’s financial position as follows – 
 

 the net revenue budget for 2021/22 was £216.818m (£208.302m in 2020/21) 

 an overspend of £0.708m was forecast for service and corporate budgets 

Page 9



 highlighted current risks and assumptions relating to corporate budgets and 
individual service areas together with the impact of coronavirus and position on 
claims to Welsh Government 

 detailed agreed savings and efficiencies worth £4.448m with the assumption 
that operational savings and fees and charges increases had been achieved 
and schools’ saving were delegated to the governing bodies to monitor and 
deliver; the savings of £0.781 would be monitored closely in year  

 provided a general update on the Capital Plan, Housing Revenue Account and 
Housing Capital Plan. 

 
Cabinet was also asked to approve the inclusion of £250k in the Capital Plan for 
2022/23 to meet the balance of the 10% match funding requirement (£423,181) for 
the Levelling Up Fund – Clwyd South bid. 
 
The following matters were raised during debate – 
 

 confirmation received from the Welsh Government (WG) regarding continuation 
of the current system of expenditure and income loss claims for the next two 
quarters was welcomed together with indications that, subject to budget 
availability, WG funding would continue beyond that timeframe if required  

 the Leader reported upon the good relationship with WG and significant financial 
support provided to mitigate the financial pressures as a result of Covid-19.  
However the local government financial settlement had still not been sufficient to 
address the continued pressures and financial challenges faced and the 
investment required to move the authority forward.  There was also a concern 
that Denbighshire had slipped from the top quartile settlement.  The Leader 
continued to lobby for a 3 year financial settlement in order to aid better financial 
planning which WG had indicated would be dependent upon the UK 
Government.  The likelihood that the financial settlement would not be known 
until December posed further challenges in terms of budget planning.  
Notwithstanding those difficulties  the Leader welcomed the clarity in the report 
and approach taken to budget setting and thanked the Lead Member and 
officers for the hard work undertaken 

 the approach taken to seek Cabinet approval of the funding required for the 
Clwyd South bid for Levelling Up funding was explained given the tight 
timescale for submission of the bid in partnership with Wrexham County 
Borough Council.  Future funding bids for the Vale of Clwyd and Clwyd West 
had been included in the Capital Strategy on the basis that 10% match funding 
would be required; it was hoped that some of that funding would be derived from 
projects already identified as part of the authority’s forward planning process 
and further work would be undertaken in that regard over the next few months 

 there was some debate regarding the risks identified in corporate budgets and 
the ongoing impact on Council Tax and the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
(CTRS) together with the pay settlements for 2021/22. Whilst current projections 
showed that the contingency funding would cover those elements it was hoped 
that WG would continue to recognise those pressures and provide funding in 
line with the previous financial year for Council Tax and the CTRS.  However it 
was highlighted that the budget for the CTRS had been largely underfunded 
since it became part of the Revenue Support Grant which remained a pressure 

Page 10



 Councillor Brian Jones raised concerns regarding the gathering pressures on 
homelessness, particularly given that the ban on tenant evictions would soon be 
lifted, and he sought assurances in that regard.  Officers confirmed an additional 
£2.4m had been included in the base budget for Community Support Services to 
mitigate pressures, including homelessness, and the position would be closely 
monitored and had been identified as a risk.  The current position showed an 
increase in costs as expected but it was dependent on movement during the 
year as to whether the actual pressures could be contained within the current 
provision. Reference was also made to the Senior Officer Working Group tasked 
with identifying and providing in-house provision to improve the level of service 
and reduce costs in the future and an update on that programme was provided 

 in response to questions raised by Councillor Brian Jones regarding the figures 
in the budget summary relating to Harbour Empowerment (£7k) and Acquisition 
of Boat Crane, Rhyl Harbour (£170k) the Head of Finance agreed to report back 
directly to Councillor Jones on the detail behind those two items on the final 
figures given the budget book provided a snapshot at a particular point in time. 

 
RESOLVED that Cabinet – 

 
(a)  note the budgets set for 2021/22 and progress against the agreed budget 

strategy, and 
 
(b) approve the inclusion of £250k in the Capital Plan for 2022/23 in order to 

reach the 10% match funding requirement for the Levelling Up Fund (as 
detailed in section 6.9 of the report). 

 
9 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The Cabinet forward work programme was presented for consideration. 
 
Members noted the likely public interest in the Llangollen 2020 item scheduled for 
the next meeting and Councillor Brian Jones queried whether it would be possible 
to meet in the Council Chamber in order to better facilitate that particular item.  It 
was confirmed that meetings were currently held remotely in line with Welsh 
Government guidance however the situation would be reviewed depending upon 
the circumstances at that time and the latest WG advice. 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet’s forward work programme be noted. 
 
The meeting concluded at 11.30 hrs. 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to Cabinet 

Date of meeting 27th July 2021 

Lead Member / Officer Lead Member for Waste, Transport and the Environment / 

Head of Planning, Public Protection and Countryside 

Services 

Report author Traffic, Parking and Road Safety Manager 

Title Llangollen 2020 Castle Street Improvement Project 

1. What is the report about? 

To seek approval to proceed with the implementation of the Llangollen 2020 Castle 

Street Improvement Project. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

It is estimated that the project will cost £1.75 million to deliver. There is also 

significant community interest in this project. For these reasons a decision is sought 

from Cabinet to approve the implementation of the project 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1. That Cabinet considers the report and approves the implementation of the 

Llangollen 2020 Castle Street Improvement project, including the amendments 

listed in Appendix A which resulted from recent public engagement feedback 

and which have been agreed with the local members. 

 

3.2. That the Committee confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of 

the Well-being Impact Assessment (Appendix C) as part of its consideration. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 
 

4. Report details 

4.1. In 2018, a community group called the Llangollen 2020 Group was formed, 

comprising both Llangollen County Councillors plus Llangollen Town Council 

representatives. Also in 2018, the Group initiated a project to consider 

improving traffic, parking, pedestrian safety and public realm issues in the Town 

Centre. The Group secured Cadwyn Clwyd funding and appointed a consultant 

to undertake a feasibility study. 

4.2. Officers from Traffic; Highways; and Economic and Business Development 

regularly participated in project meetings with the Group. In accordance with the 

Community Resilience corporate priority, the Group was chaired by one of the 

elected members (Cllr Graham Timms) rather than being officer-led. 

4.3. In 2018, the Llangollen 2020 Group held community engagement events as part 

of the feasibility study to ask people their views on traffic, parking, pedestrian 

and public realm issues plus potential solutions. These events included a public 

exhibition; an online survey; social media publicity; and stakeholder meetings. 

4.4. The feasibility study identified a number of concerns including traffic and 

parking-related congestion, pavements being too narrow, difficulties for 

pedestrians crossing Castle Street, and the poor condition of the public realm. 

4.5. The findings of the feasibility study led to the development of detailed design 

proposals through officers working closely with the Llangollen 2020 Group. 

These design proposals are detailed in both Appendices D and E. The 

proposals can be summarised as: removal of 14 parking spaces from Castle 

Street to allow both pavements to be widened; 2 new loading bays on Castle 

Street; 1 new loading bay on Market Street; 1 new loading bay on Bridge Street; 

speed reduction features and a 20 mph speed limit on Castle Street; dropped 

kerb pedestrian crossing points along Castle Street; repaving of pavements with 

high-quality paving materials; closure of Short Street; and removal of parking at 

the Abbey Road/Castle Street junction to allow the pavement to be widened. 

4.6.  To ensure the community understood the proposals; the Leader, Lead 

Member, Head of Service and Corporate Director for Public Realm decided that 

the Council would undertake a comprehensive public engagement exercise. 

This launched on the 15th June 2021 and ran for 3 weeks. The engagement 

Page 14



 
 

included: a letter-drop to Llangollen residents and businesses; online 

consultation materials and a questionnaire; a 5-day public exhibition on Castle 

Street attended by 450 people with paper questionnaires given out; visits to 

Castle Street and Market Street businesses; individual briefing sessions for both 

the MP for Clwyd South and the MS for Clwyd South; and a presentation given 

to a meeting of the Town Council. 

4.7. A total of 507 questionnaire responses were received in response to the recent 

engagement. These were comprised of 322 online questionnaires and 185 

paper questionnaires. Of the 507 responses, 95 were from business owners, 

358 were from residents, 32 from visitors, and 16 from people who work in the 

town but live elsewhere. The full public engagement report is in Appendix F. 

4.8. The questionnaire asked respondents whether they agreed or disagreed with 

the main proposals contained within the project. Of the responses received, the 

number of people who agreed with the various proposals generally ranged from 

between 60% and 68%, except for 48% of respondents who agreed that the 

project would make them more likely to walk or cycle. Conversely, the number 

of people who disagreed with the various proposals generally varied from 

between 25% and 36%, except for the 22% of respondents who disagreed that 

the 20 mph speed limit and speed reduction features would make Castle Street 

safer. 

4.9. A total of 64% respondents said the project is generally a good idea, with some 

of those saying the project could be improved further. A total of 36% of 

respondents said that the project isn’t generally a good idea. 

4.10. Where respondents raised specific qualitative issues in the questionnaires or at 

the exhibition, these were mostly where respondents had concerns about the 

proposals. The main issues of concern raised were: the proposed width of 

Castle Street is too narrow; the loss of on-street parking; the proposed loading 

bays being goods-only; the proposed closure of Short Street; the proposed 

width of the Bridge Street junction and the proposed Bridge Street loading bay. 

4.11. The public engagement feedback has been carefully considered and discussed 

with the Lead Member and local elected members. This has led to some design 

changes proposed for the project, which are detailed in Appendix A. Those 

Page 15



 
 

concerns raised during the engagement that didn’t result in design changes are 

listed in Appendix B with explanations of why changes haven’t been made. 

4.12. The two elected members for Llangollen are fully supportive of the project, as 

are Llangollen Town Council. Please see Appendix G for statements of support. 

4.13. If Cabinet approves the implementation of the project, construction will 

commence in September 2021, with completion expected by March 2022. 

4.14. If Cabinet approves the project, the next step will be to undertake the statutory 

consultation for the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO), which could result in further 

amendments to the proposed traffic and parking restrictions. If the TRO 

consultation required more significant changes to the project, then those 

proposed changes would be brought back to Cabinet for consideration. The 

Leader; Corporate Director; Head of Planning, Public Protection and 

Countryside Services; and Monitoring Officer would determine if the required 

changes are considered to be significant. 

4.15. It is recommended that the project is implemented with the proposed 

amendments listed in Appendix A incorporated into the scheme design.  

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 
Priorities? 

5.1. The proposed project will improve highway infrastructure in Llangollen town 

centre, contributing to the Connected Communities priority. 

5.2. The project was initially led and developed by the two elected members and 

Town Council representatives, in-line with the Resilient Communities priority. 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

6.1. The total project cost is estimated at £1.75m, based on detailed cost estimates 

which allows some contingency for increases construction material costs. It will 

be funded by a combination of Council capital funding and WG grant funding 

which will need to be spent by 31st March 2022. See Appendix H. 

6.2. The project has been developed jointly by officers within both Planning, Public 

Protect and Countryside Services; Highways and Environmental Services with 

assistance from officers in the Communications team. 

Page 16



 
 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 
Assessment? 

7.1. The project contains a number of potential benefits to people’s health and the 

environment in terms of improving facilities for pedestrians, improving the public 

realm and reducing vehicle speeds. 

7.2. Some local businesses have expressed concerns about the impact of losing on-

street short stay parking. To mitigate against this, amendments are proposed to 

the operation of the loading bays which will replace the parking. The 14 free 

parking spaces in Market Street car park will also help mitigate against this. 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 
and others? 

8.1. Paragraphs 4.4 to 4.10 of this report provide an overview of the engagement 

work already undertaken. Appendix E provides detail of the responses to the 

most recent public engagement exercise. 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

9.1. The Council funding required for this project is already incorporated into our 

funding plans as it is funding carried forward for road improvement works from 

previous years. It is welcome that the project has attracted the level of external 

funding that it has in order for it to proceed. As with all capital projects, 

especially at this time of rising prices and economic uncertainty, it will be 

important that the expenditure is monitored closely. The proposal is supported. 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 
reduce them? 

10.1. The public engagement demonstrates some significant differences of opinion 

about the project amongst the local community. Whilst the survey data indicates 

that nearly two-thirds of respondents think the project is generally a good idea, 

that still leaves 36% who don’t think it is a good idea. The amendments listed in 

Appendix A will allay some of the concerns raised, but there is still likely to be a 

significant number of people who are opposed to the project. 

10.2. Should Cabinet approve the project, thorough monitoring of the project will be 

undertaken. 

Page 17



 
 

11. Power to make the decision 

11.1. The Highways Act 1980 gives highway authorities the powers to alter the layout 

of the highway. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 provides powers to 

introduce traffic and parking restrictions to regulate the use of the highway. 

Page 18



Appendix A 

 

Proposed amendments to the project resulting from the recent public engagement 

 

 Proposed change Reasoning 

1 Change the two proposed loading bays 
for Castle Street to general loading bays. 

This is proposed in response to concerns 
raised by business owners about them not 
being able to use their own vehicles to 
unload goods. It will also allow customers to 
move heavier items. 
 
Main negative impact of this is that the 
loading bays will be occupied more 
frequently which will reduce their 
availability and result in more interruptions 
to the flow of traffic. Will also increase need 
for regular enforcement. 

2 Consider placing time limit on Castle 
Street loading bay from 0930 until 6pm 

This would make the bay an unrestricted 
length of road outside of these hours. This 
would allow anyone to park prior to 0930 in 
the morning subject to the availability of a 
space. 
Negative is that bays could be taken up by 
overnight resident parking i.e no guarantee 
that they’d be available. 

3 Change the proposed loading bay for 
Market Street to a general loading bay 

This is proposed in response to concerns 
raised by business owners about them not 
being able to use their own vehicles to 
unload goods. It will also allow customers to 
move heavier items. 
 
Main negative impact of this is that the 
loading bay will be occupied more 
frequently which will reduce its availability. 
Will also increase need for regular 
enforcement. 

4 Inset proposed Castle Street loading bays  
(This means that the existing pavements 
won’t be widened where they are 
adjacent to the proposed loading bays).  

This will mean that the loading bays won’t 
extend out as far into the road as would 
have been the case. 
Only negative impact of this is that the 
pavements won’t be widened where 
adjacent to the loading bays.  

5 Withdraw proposal to close Short Street. 
Reconsider options for Short Street as 
part of Phase 2 including potential for 
one-way with left turn only restriction 

In light of opposition to closure of Short 
Street it is recommended that it is reopened 
and a traffic camera survey is undertaken to 
monitor the use of Short Street and any 
road safety or congestion-related issues. 

6 Consider amendments to East 
Street/Parade Street 90 degree bend 

Consider scope to improve the existing 
“pinch-point” issues that have been 
reported. 

Page 19



7 Consider and, if possible, provide 
additional short stay parking on Market 
Street one way section 

One-way restriction may provide sufficient 
width to provide 2 no. on-street parking 
spaces. This needs to be checked to ensure 
it won’t interfere with the swept-path of 
large vehicles turning into Market Street off 
Castle Street 

8 Undertake traffic assessment and 
consider options for re-routing of HGV 
through traffic 

Evaluate and quantify HGV through traffic, 
is it same local hauliers using the route for 
example? 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



Appendix B 

 

Other comments and suggestions from the public engagement that haven’t resulted in changes 

the design of the project 

 

 Issue raised DCC officer response 

1 Reducing the width of Castle Street to 
6.0m means that it will be too narrow to 
allow two large vehicles to pass 

Design guidance in Department for 
Transport (DfT) publication Manual for 
Streets, suggests that a road width of 5.5m 
is adequate for 2 HGVs to pass one another. 
We are proposing 6.0m for Castle Street. 
The DfT publication Manual for Streets 2 
(wider applications) states “Lanes wider 
than 3m are not necessary in most urban 
areas carrying mixed traffic”. 
 
Reducing lane the road width reduces 
vehicles speeds and shortens the distance 
that pedestrians need to cross. 
 
Active Travel Design guidance states that 
traffic lane widths should be 3.0m or less or 
more than 4.0m. The existing road width in 
Castle Street (before the Covid scheme was 
introduced) was 7.3m. Making Castle Street 
8.0m wide road would not be possible in 
Castle Street without making the existing 
pavements even narrower. 

2 Castle Street/Abbey Road junction will be 
too narrow 

The proposed layout has been designed 
using Computer Aided Design (CAD) vehicle 
tracking software to ensure that all 
manoeuvres can be completed by the 
largest vehicles expected to use the 
junction. 

3 Castle Street/Bridge Street junction will 
be too narrow 

The proposed layout has been designed 
using Computer Aided Design (CAD) vehicle 
tracking software to ensure that all 
manoeuvres can be completed by the 
largest vehicles expected to use the 
junction. 

4 Road narrowing will increase traffic 
congestion and increase traffic exhaust 
fumes 

Any increase in queuing will be marginal and 
will have a negligible impact on local air 
quality levels.  

5 Llangollen needs a by-pass The cost of constructing a by-pass, including 
a new crossing of the River Dee would cost 
tens of millions of pounds. There is also an 
argument that traffic by-passing Llangollen 
could have a detrimental effect on the 
town’s economy.  

6 HGVs should be banned Unfortunately, as Castle Street is also the 
A542, it forms part of the strategic road 

Page 21



network and wouldn’t be appropriate to 
prohibit HGV traffic. We will instead liaise 
with the WG and Wrexham CBC to consider 
the longer distance routing of through-
traffic, including the role of SatNavs. 

7 Proposed Bridge Street loading bay isn’t 
required/is in the wrong location 

The current location has been identified 
because of the potential hotel 
redevelopment. The loading bay can 
however be used by any business and its 
location closer to Castle Street will be 
beneficial in this regard. 

8 Castle Street short stay parking should 
remain because of the detrimental 
impact it will have on businesses 

The proposed loading bays will provide 
delivery space for businesses. Business 
owners will be able to use the bays to 
load/unload their own vehicles. Customers 
will be able to use the bays to load heavy 
items. 

9 Castle Street short stay parking is needed 
to provide parking close to shops for 
people with disabilities 

Disabled parking bays are proposed closed 
to Castle Street on Bridge Street and Oak 
Street respectively 

10 Loading bays need to be mixed-use i.e. 
short stay parking for part of the day and 
then loading bays for rest of the day  

Consideration is currently being given to 
changing the start times of the loading bay 
so they’re unrestricted for the first part of 
the day.  
Experience of mixed-use bays in other 
towns suggests that they often cause much 
confusion amongst motorists leading to 
significant amounts of illegal parking. 

11 Yorkstone paving will be damaged by 
road salt 

DCC Highway maintenance manager 
confirms that the Yorkstone will be suitable 
and not vulnerable to road salt. 

12 Abbey Road short stay parking (at the 
Castle Street junction) is needed as 
otherwise more vehicles will park in side 
streets 

Removing parking will allow the narrow 
pavements to be widened in this location 
which is also part of the school walking 
route for many school pupils. 

13 There is no need for the loading bays as 
they will just cause traffic hold-ups 

Loading bays will create delays for larger 
vehicles trying to pass them but this will 
also slow traffic speeds. Loading bays are 
necessary to service local businesses. 

14 Making the section of Market Street one-
way will cause confusion 

The current one-way has resulted in some 
confusion as locals get used to it, but this is 
quite usual when one-way systems are first 
introduced. Making the scheme permanent 
is unlikely to be detrimental in this regard. 

15 Don’t include free parking in Market 
Street car park as it will displace more 
tourist parking 

The free parking will provide short stay 
spaces for local people even if they’re 
arriving later in the day. It is unlikely that an 
hour would be enough for visitors to the 
town. Experience suggests that parking 
charges do not put off visitors who see 
parking costs as part of the costs of their 

Page 22



day out, plus generally Denbighshire parking 
tariffs are cheap compared to other parts of 
the UK. 

16 Provide free parking for the beginning of 
the day for locals doing their shopping 

This is being considered in looking at the 
operational times for the loading bays. 

17 Providing disabled parking bays in Market 
Street car park is too far for many blue 
badge holders 

Blue badge bays are proposed for Oak 
Street and Bridge Street – close to Castle 
Street. 

18 A ramped road surface isn’t a good idea Ramping the road surface will encourage 
slower traffic speeds. 

19 Why can’t we have a pedestrian crossing 
on Castle Street? 

One of the principles of the Llangollen 2020 
scheme is to reduce street clutter, which 
means minimising the amount of traffic 
signs and posts. 
A pedestrian crossing would also require an 
extensive length of zig zag lines which could 
impact upon the ability to provide loading 
bays. 

20 Why was a shared space not proposed? It was considered at the outset of the 
project but wasn’t considered suitable 
owing to the heavy traffic flows from Castle 
Streets status as part of the A542. 

21 Why aren’t there more street trees 
proposed? 

We did consider more trees but there are 
high amounts of underground mains and 
services. Also pavement widths will still 
relatively narrow even with the proposal to 
widen them. 

22 The scheme doesn’t include cycle 
routes/cycle lanes 

Phase 2 of the project will look at the 
interconnecting cycle routes either side of 
Castle Street 

23 Needs more locations to park bicycles This has been considered at but a suitable 
location hasn’t yet been agreed. 

24 Narrowing road will impact upon cyclist 
safety 

Active Travel design guidance suggests 3.0m 
lanes with speed reduction features or 4.5m 
lanes. Providing 4.5m lanes would require a 
9.0m wide road which isn’t achievable on 
Castle Street. Active Travel Wales design 
recommends that lane widths should be 
3.0m or less, or more than 4.0m. Providing 
an 8.0m wide road wouldn’t be possible in 
Castle Street without making existing 
pavements even narrower.  

26 The project doesn’t address the town’s 
parking problems especially for locals 
such as visitors parking in surrounding 
streets 

The next stage of the project is to look at a 
parking strategy for the town to try and 
better manage parking. We have received 
lots of suggestions about possible additional 
parking locations. 

28 Making Castle Street narrower will place 
pedestrians in more danger 

3.0m wide traffic lanes are fully compliant 
with DfT design guidance for urban areas 
with mixed traffic. Making Castle Street 
narrower shortens the crossing distance for 

Page 23



pedestrians, reduces traffic speeds and 
enables the pavements to be made wider. 

29 Provide controlled crossing from A5 to 
Castle Street 

Was considered by the WG as part of their 
proposals to upgrade the current traffic 
signals but there is not the junction capacity 
to enable this without further increasing 
traffic delays. This is because an all-red 
traffic stage would be required to enable 
pedestrians to cross under a pedestrian 
stage (green man). 

31 Removing on-street parking/loading 
makes it easier to cross the road for 
those with visual impairments 

Loading bays are necessary to service Castle 
Street businesses. 

32 No point widening pavements unless 
Council clamp down on allowing A-boards 

The Council has a standard A-board policy 
which recognises there is a balance 
between providing suitable pavement width 
and allowing businesses to attract 
customers. 

33 Consider park and ride The next stage of the project will consider 
parking options for Llangollen. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



Llangollen 2020 - WIA - July
2021
Well-being Impact Assessment Report
This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 956

Brief description:

The Llangollen 2020 project involves the introduction of widened
footways and raised junction tables, including enhanced pedestrian
crossing opportunities, on Castle Street in Llangollen. The purpose of the
project is to increase active travel levels and to improve access to a
number of key destinations in the town, for both pedestrian and cyclists,
including Ysgol Dinas Bran, Ysgol y Gwernant, Ysgol Bryn Collen,
Llangollen International Pavilion, Llangollen Health Centre, Llangollen
Town Centre, Llangollen Bus station and Llangollen Railway Station.

Date Completed: 07/07/2021 15:28:38 Version: 1

Completed by: Ben Wilcox-Jones

Responsible Service: Planning & Public Protection

Localities affected by
the proposal: Llangollen,

Who will be affected by
the proposal?

The general public, including vulnerable road users, including children
and other groups with protected characteristics, pedestrians, cyclists and
business owners.

Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

Yes

Page 25



Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive

A resilient Denbighshire Positive

A healthier Denbighshire Positive

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

 ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 31 / 36.

Summary for each Sustainable Development principle

Long term

The Llangollen 2020 project has been developed to improve the
pedestrian environment in Llangollen Town Centre and to reduce the
number of local journeys that are made by car.The project aligns with the
Welsh Governments new Transport Strategy,Llwybyr Newydd, which
places a duty on all local authorities, to ensure that active travel is
prioritised over motorised transport in all new highway schemes in
Wales.Llwybyr Newydd seeks to reduce carbon emissions, improve air
quality,reduce obesity etc.

Prevention

The project promotes independence and resilience for children and groups
with protected characteristics. There are road safety concerns in the
vicinity of Llangollen's schools. Improving active travel facilities can
reduce the number of car journeys that take place. Visually impaired
citizens do not visit the town centre at busy times. The scheme can help to
alleviate this. The project will also help to reduce the negative impact of
climate change by prioritising local active journeys.

Integration

The project will contribute to WG's own Well-being goals, such as A
Prosperous Wales and A Healthier Wales, to specific objectives from the
joint Conwy and Denbighshire Well-being Plan like 'Better enabling people
to travel to work and services', to DCC's own Corporate Priorities
including Connected Communities and also to the priorities established in
WG's Transport Plan 'Llwybyr Newydd', which prioritises sustainable
transportation over motorised transport for environmental reasons.

Collaboration

The project was initially a community led with DCC providing support and
advice. As we have moved towards the construction phase of the project,
DCC have taken the lead. As the project has moved through the
developmental process key partners such as WG, TFW & Sustrans have
become involved. By prioritising active travel the project is directly
contributing to DCC and WG's Net Carbon Zero ambitions.

Involvement

Public engagement and consultation has taken place throughout the
development of the project. Initially the 'Llangollen 2020' group engaged
on the principle of pedestrian improvements in the town centre area.
During the design phase, DCC has undertaken public consultation on the
design of the scheme and will be doing so again with respect to the Traffic
Regulation Orders. The recent consultation which was both digital and face
to face was done with expert advice from our Public Engagement team.

Summary of impact

Page 26



A more equal Denbighshire Positive

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Positive

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving
Welsh language Neutral

A globally responsible Denbighshire Neutral

Main conclusions

This is the second iteration of this Well-being Impact Assessment, with the original version being
undertaken as part of the grant funding application to WG in January 2021. It was apparent,
following completion of the first iteration, that more stakeholder engagement was needed as the
project was taken forward to the design/tender stage. This, second iteration, of the Well-being
Impact Assessment has been completed after undertaking a significant amount of stakeholder/public
engagement/consultation. The design of the scheme is/has been modified as a result of these
stakeholder discussions. 

The second iteration has reinforced the need to ensure that the projects supply chains is, wherever
possible, sustainable, so that the positive, long-term, impacts of the project are not negatively off-
set by short term issues during the construction phase.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

 We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

 We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

 We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 27



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

An improved active travel network can enhance the physical appearance
of an area, improving pedestrian access and perceived safety, thereby
increasing the number and length of visits made by local residents and
visitors. An improved pedestrian environment, together with enhanced
traffic management improves the amenity of the area for all users,
generating increased investment and income generation.

Congestion along the Castle Street and the A5, negatively impacts local
businesses and residents, delaying deliveries and commuting times and
impacting on productivity within the area, particularly during peak season.
The scheme will encourage modal shift from the car for local trips
contributing to improved traffic flows.

Evidence suggests that pedestrians and cyclists are better customers in
terms of overall spend, time spent in the area and frequency of visits.
Consumers who travel by car typically spend less time and therefore
money due to time pressures from car parking.

By procuring goods and services in ways that support the local economy
and by addressing social, environmental and cultural well-being issues.

We understand that the existing provision of active travel routes within
the town and the high pedestrian footfall figures combine to reduce the
number of local journeys that are made by foot and bike. By improving
the provision of routes within the town centre area we will reduce the
number of vehicular journeys that are made for local journeys and
encourage modal shift.

The Conwy and Denbighshire Well-being Plan has an objective to better
enable people to travel to work and services. This scheme, and the
associated review of Llangollen's Active Travel routes, will play a key role
in fulfilling this objective, by providing improved access to the bus station,
the Canal Towpath and other key destinations within the town and the
surrounding area.

Further actions
required

The perceived and actual negatives will be managed and minimised
through the public engagement process that we have in developed.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Reduction in local car journeys
Reduction in carbon emissions
Introduction of green infrastructure
Supported by Active Travel training for residents
Purpose of the scheme is modal shift
Utilise local contractors
Reducing vehicle speeds and reducing emissions

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Increased active travel (modal shift)
Enhancing access to passenger transport facilities.
Enhancing previously developed land
The introduction of green infrastructure

Page 28



Economic
development

Reducing the reliance on car ownership.
Enhancing access to services (Llangollen scores poorly in WIMD figures).
Improving access to passenger transport
Cyclists spend more per head than any other type of mode of transport.
Enhancing access, by bike, to Wrexham and Chirk.

Quality skills for the
long term

Cycle training is already provided for children in Llangollen's schools.
We are also establishing a programme of family based cycle training as
part of this project. This will give adults more confidence to cycle on the
public highway and access services. The successful contractor will be
asked to provide a number of community benefits including providing
employment opportunities for local people.

Quality jobs for the
long term

Employment through the construction phase of the project.
Physical enhancement will ensure the viability and usability of the town
centre area and will maximise opportunities for jobs in the retail and
hospitality sector. he successful contractor will be asked to provide a
number of community benefits including providing employment
opportunities for local people.

Childcare N/A

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society Construction phase
Sourcing of products

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

N/A

Economic
development

Concerns from local business about the loss of on-street parking and the
potential negative impact on their businesses. This has been dispelled by a
number of national studies which validate the positive outcomes of
enhanced public realm schemes and their impact on businesses. Most
notably pedestrians and cyclists are known to dwell for longer in town
centres and spend more money.

Quality skills for the
long term N/A

Quality jobs for the
long term N/A

Childcare N/A

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Page 29



Justification for
impact

The Wellbeing of Future generation act states that local authorities should
focus action on ensuring that places maximise physical and mental health
and well-being. The provision of new and improved active travel routes, in
conjunction with other softer measures e.g. promotion and education will
have a significant and positive impact on the physical health of residents.

This scheme will also be designed to comply with the Active Travel
(Wales) Act 2013 Design Guidance and as such will be constructed utilising
an innovative approach which complies to the highest possible standard
ensuring that the severity and number of potential collisions is minimised.

This application should also be considered in the wider context of
Denbighshire County Council’s ambition to develop an enhanced active
travel network in Llangollen that engenders modal shift. As previously
referenced in this document a proportion of our 2021/22 Core ATF
allocation will be utilised to develop other active travel routes in
Llangollen.

This will align with the following wellbeing objectives that were identified
in the Conwy and Denbighshire Well-being plan.

• Use the environment to encourage mental well-being

By reducing vehicle speeds and congestion (through the removal of on-
street parking) and through the introduction of Green infrastructure we
are hopeful that air quality will improve on Castle Street.

The Conwy and Denbighshire Well-being Plan has a priority to support
good mental well-being for all ages. The well-being plan has identified,
through a Well-being assessment, that improving access to services for
those that live in isolation will play an important role in this. By enhancing
the active travel routes in Llangollen we will contribute to this objective.

The air quality levels on Berwyn Street (A5) which adjoins Castle Street at
its southern end are very close to the limit that has been identified in the
WHO guidelines. Increasing the level of active travel in Llangollen, for
local trips, will reduce the number of vehicular journeys and positively
impact on these concerning air quality levels.

Further actions
required Through further targeted public engagement

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Introduction of green infrastructure as part of the scheme
Improvement in air quality caused by a reduction in vehicle journeys

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Through the introduction of green infrastructure
Improvement in air quality caused by a reduction in vehicle journeys

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Construction phase (managed by a Waste Management plan)

Page 30



Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

The design will be compliant with the Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013 and
the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. We will also work closely with our own
in-house biodiversity officers to ensure that the appropriate ecological
surveys are conducted and that the findings are addressed with suitable
mitigation measures.

The following actions will be undertaken and incorporated into the
construction phase plan in order to minimise the negative impact of the
scheme during construction phase.

Limit Fuel Usage

• Minimise haul distances
• Reduce vehicle idling time

Reduce noise

• Work only during designated times
• Communicate with residents throughout the duration of work

Avoid contamination by properly disposing of water and other materials

Utilise re-useable technology

Develop a robust and achievable programme of work prior to the scheme
commencing and wherever possible use appropriate project management
methods to ensure that the project is not subject to unnecessary delays.

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

The project will raise the profile of active travel, reduce the number of
local trips that are made by car and improve air quality in Llangollen
through the development of the scheme and the associated training that
we propose to implement.

Flood risk
management N/A

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment Construction phase (but managed by a Waste Management plan)

Biodiversity in the
built environment Construction phase (but managed by a Waste Management plan)

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Construction phase (but managed by a Waste Management plan)

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption Construction phase (but managed by a Waste Management plan)

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

N/A

Flood risk
management N/A

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Page 31



Justification for
impact

The Wellbeing of Future generation act states that local authorities should
focus action on ensuring that places maximise physical and mental health
and well-being. The provision of new and improved active travel routes, in
conjunction with other softer measures e.g. promotion and education will
have a significant and positive impact on the physical health of residents.

This scheme will also be designed to comply with the Active Travel
(Wales) Act 2013 Design Guidance and as such will be constructed utilising
an innovative approach which complies to the highest possible standard
ensuring that the severity and number of potential collisions is minimised.

This application should also be considered in the wider context of
Denbighshire County Council’s ambition to develop an enhanced active
travel network in Llangollen that engenders modal shift. As previously
referenced in this document a proportion of our 2021/22 Core ATF
allocation will be utilised to develop other active travel routes in
Llangollen.

This will align with the following wellbeing objectives that were identified
in the Conwy and Denbighshire Well-being plan.

• Use the environment to encourage mental well-being

By reducing vehicle speeds and congestion (through the removal of on-
street parking) and through the introduction of Green infrastructure we
are hopeful that air quality will improve on Castle Street.

The Conwy and Denbighshire Well-being Plan has a priority to support
good mental well-being for all ages. The well-being plan has identified,
through a Well-being assessment, that improving access to services for
those that live in isolation will play an important role in this. By enhancing
the active travel routes in Llangollen we will contribute to this objective.

The air quality levels on Berwyn Street (A5) which adjoins Castle Street at
its southern end are very close to the limit that has been identified in the
WHO guidelines. Increasing the level of active travel in Llangollen, for
local trips, will reduce the number of vehicular journeys and positively
impact on these concerning air quality levels.

Further actions
required Through public engagement

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

Increased active travel levels for local journeys.
Support physical and mental well-being.

Access to good
quality, healthy food

According to the WIMD figures Llangollen suffers from poor access to
services. This scheme will improve access to the town centre, Llangollen
Health Centre and the public transport network.

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Active travel schemes support physical and mental well-being.

Access to healthcare This scheme will improve access to the Llangollen Health Centre.

Participation in
leisure opportunities

The principle of active travel schemes, funded by Welsh Government, is to
improve access for utility journeys. However an associated benefit will be
the improvement in access to leisure walking and cycling opportunities for
local people. Page 32



Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

N/A

Access to good
quality, healthy food N/A

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

N/A

Access to healthcare N/A

Participation in
leisure opportunities N/A

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

The scheme will reduce severance within Llangollen and it will help, in
conjunction with the development work proposed in our associated Core
ATF application, to reduce severance to neighbouring communities like
Trevor, Llantysilio, and Cefn.

The town of Llangollen is effectively split into thirds by the River Dee,
because there is only one crossing, and by the A5. Therefore community
severance exists within the town, with a number of barriers existing that
prevent/reduce active journeys to key destinations, such as the three
local schools and Llangollen Health Centre. This issue particularly affects
the vulnerable road users that would typically wish to access these
facilities.

The proposed scheme, and the associated review of active travel routes
within the town, will have a direct impact on this issue. The initial
Llangollen 2020 scheme will widen the footways on the River Dee Bridge,
widen the footways on Castle Street and will give enhanced prioritisation
to active journeys. This will be achieved through improving key junctions,
introducing raised junction tables and active travel priority crossings. The
scheme development work, that will be undertaken with the Core Active
Travel grant, will further serve to reduce severance within the town by
improving access to the largest residential area in the town, Pengwern,
and to other key destinations like the Llangollen Canal towpath.

As part of this scheme we are working closely with colleagues in Welsh
Governments Network Management team to introduce improvements to
the A5/Castle Street junction to enhance the active travel provision,
improve safety and reduce this community severance.

The scheme development work, that will be undertaken with the Core ATF
grant, will also enhance active travel facilities along the A5 corridor in
Llangollen and across other key routes that cause community severance.

Further actions
required

The negatives will be mitigated against through continued communication
with local businesses and the general public both during and after the
construction phase.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 33



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

The significantly widened footways will make it easier for people with
physical disabilities to navigate around the town centre area.
The proposed scheme will improve active travel access to the three local
schools and it will therefore make it easier for children to walk or cycle to
school.

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

N/A

People affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage and
unequal outcomes

The WIMD figures demonstrate that Llangollen's residents suffer from
poor access to services both locally and in the wider region. THis scheme
will make it easier for residents to undertake multi-modal journeys to key
facilities, by foot/bike/bus in the wider area. It will also enhance access to
services in Llangollen.
By enhancing the town centre area it will be sustained as an important
tourist destination and a viable area for the retail and hospitality
industries.

Areas affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage

The WIMD figures demonstrate that Llangollen's residents suffer from
poor access to services both locally and in the wider region. THis scheme
will make it easier for residents to undertake multi-modal journeys to key
facilities, by foot/bike/bus in the wider area. It will also enhance access to
services in Llangollen.
By enhancing the town centre area it will be sustained as an important
tourist destination and a viable area for the retail and hospitality
industries.

Negative impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

The removal of on-street parking on Castle Street could disbenefit people
who currently, and frequently illegally, park there to access local shops,
as a result of physical disabilities. Although this is somewhat offset by the
availability of disabled parking spaces in the closely located Market Street
and East Street car parks.

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

N/A

Page 34



People affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage and
unequal outcomes

N/A

Areas affected by
socio-economic
disadvantage

N/A

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

The scheme will reduce severance within Llangollen and it will help, in
conjunction with the development work proposed in our associated Core
ATF application, to reduce severance to neighbouring communities like
Trevor, Llantysilio, and Cefn.

The town of Llangollen is effectively split into thirds by the River Dee,
because there is only one crossing, and by the A5. Therefore community
severance exists within the town, with a number of barriers existing that
prevent/reduce active journeys to key destinations, such as the three
local schools and Llangollen Health Centre. This issue particularly affects
the vulnerable road users that would typically wish to access these
facilities.

The proposed scheme, and the associated review of active travel routes
within the town, will have a direct impact on this issue. The initial
Llangollen 2020 scheme will widen the footways on the River Dee Bridge,
widen the footways on Castle Street and will give enhanced prioritisation
to active journeys. This will be achieved through improving key junctions,
introducing raised junction tables and active travel priority crossings. The
scheme development work, that will be undertaken with the Core Active
Travel grant, will further serve to reduce severance within the town by
improving access to the largest residential area in the town, Pengwern,
and to other key destinations like the Llangollen Canal towpath.

As part of this scheme we are working closely with colleagues in Welsh
Governments Network Management team to introduce improvements to
the A5/Castle Street junction to enhance the active travel provision,
improve safety and reduce this community severance.

The scheme development work, that will be undertaken with the Core ATF
grant, will also enhance active travel facilities along the A5 corridor in
Llangollen and across other key routes that cause community severance.

Further actions
required

The negatives will be mitigated against through strong communication
with local businesses and the general public both during and after the
construction phase.

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

The improvements that will be introduced as part of this scheme will result
in high footfall levels through the town and will ensure that there is a high
degree of natural surveillance, which helps to minimise and safety issues.

Community
participation and
resilience

The scheme has been underpinned by an extensive public engagement
exercise.

The attractiveness of
the area This scheme will enhance the public realm in the area.

Page 35



Connected
communities

The scheme will provide access for Llangollen's residents to the canal
towpath and the wider region including Wrexham and Chirk.

Rural resilience
Enhanced access to the Llangollen Canal
The project will ease the cost of travel for some residents by improving
access to key public services, and the passenger transport network.

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals N/A

Community
participation and
resilience

The pandemic has necessitated an on-line engagement strategy in recent
months. This may have resulted in some people being unable to
participate.

The attractiveness of
the area N/A

Connected
communities N/A

Rural resilience Disruption to local business during the construction phase.

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The scheme has little or impact on the Welsh Language, culture or
heritage.

Further actions
required

The scheme has little or impact on the Welsh Language, culture or
heritage.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh N/A

Promoting the Welsh
language N/A

Culture and heritage N/A

Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh N/A

Promoting the Welsh
language N/A

Culture and heritage N/A

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Page 36



Justification for
impact

We will follow Denbighshire County Council’s Contract Procedure Rules to
ensure that all supply chains are fair, ethical and sustainable.

Whenever possible we will utilise local suppliers and contractors to ensure
we contribute to the economic wellbeing of the local community.

Active Travel schemes, by their very nature, can have a significant
positive impact on key environmental issues like noise reduction and the
reduction of greenhouse gases. Given the existing and potential usage
figures in this area we would anticipate that there are significant potential
benefits associated with this scheme.

The scheme has been designed to ensure the risk for polluting adjacent
watercourses is minimal. Residual risk will be passed to the contractor to
address in their Risk Assessment and Method Statements.

This will align with the following wellbeing objectives that were identified
in the Conwy and Denbighshire Well-being plan.
• Buy in resources that are sustainable and locally produced

The Conwy and Denbighshire Well-being Plan has prioritised
environmental resilience. This scheme will positively contribute towards
this priority during the procurement and construction phase through,
wherever possible, the use of local suppliers and products.

Further actions
required

Wherever it is practically possible products will be sourced locally. All
products will be sourced responsibly, even if it is not possible to source
them locally.

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Wherever possible local products and local contractors will be utilised
during the construction phase of the project

Human rights By sourcing products locally we will not be promoting the negative impact
that can occur with supply chains from other countries.

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

As part of the scheme enhancements will be made to the highway network
to improve passenger transport facilities and access to them.

Reducing climate
change

The principle ethos of active travel schemes is reduce car occupancy and
have a significant positive impact on the climate.

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

It may not be possible to source some projects locally.

Human rights N/A

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

N/A

Reducing climate
change N/A

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



8
4

.
2

1
8

L

3
4

2
0

5
3

.
5

3
2

N

3
2

1
4

1
4

.
7

2
4

E

S
2

0
7

8
6

.
6

8
0

L

3
4

1
9

3
0

.
9

4
0

N

3
2

1
4

1
0

.
1

1
5

E

S
2

0
3

8
5

.
9

3
3

L

3
4

2
0

2
1

.
6

0
8

N

3
2

1
4

0
2

.
8

5
7

E

S
9

8
6

.
1

0
3

L

3
4

2
0

0
9

.
2

4
8

N

3
2

1
4

3
3

.
8

2
2

E

S
8

8
6

.
1

5
0

L

3
4

1
9

2
7

.
5

2
4

N

3
2

1
4

9
1

.
7

4
1

E

S
7

8
5

.
4

5
1

L

3
4

1
9

7
4

.
3

1
2

N

3
2

1
4

9
6

.
2

9
1

E

S
6

8
5

.
0

2
6

L

3
4

2
0

0
3

.
3

3
9

N

3
2

1
4

8
9

.
9

1
4

E

S
5

8
3

.
7

9
2

L

3
4

2
0

3
4

.
6

9
2

N

3
2

1
4

9
3

.
6

0
9

E

S
4

T
A

C

T
A

C

T
A

C

T
A

C

T
A

C

8
3
.7

4

8
3
.6

7

B
o

l
e

=
0

.
7

m

C
a

n
o

p
y
=

1
2

m

G
U

G
U

G
U

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

G
U

G
U

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

8
6
.
4
3

8
6
.
4
5

8
6
.
4
9

8
6
.
5
0
1

8

6

.
5

3

4

8

6

.
5

4

4

8
6
.6

4
0

8
6
.
6
3
3

8

6

.
6

4

8

6

.
6

5

8

6

.
6

8

8

6

.
6

6

T
P

T
P

8
6
.
0
7

8
6
.
0
6

8
6
.
0
1

8
5
.
9
4

8
5
.
8
9

8
5
.
7
9

8
5
.8

7

G
U

G
U

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
5

.
0

4

G
U

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
4

.
9

4

B
T

G
U

G
U

G
U

E
l
e

c

G
U

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
5

.
5

7

E
l
e

c

G
U

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
5

.
8

9

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
5

.
9

7

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
1

3

B
T

G
U

B
T

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
5

.
5

8

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
5

.
6

5

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
5

.
5

7

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
5

.
8

6

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
5

.
9

9

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
0

8

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
1

2

E
l
e

c
I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
2

4

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
2

5

B
T

E
l
e

c

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
2

6

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
3

5

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
3

8

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
3

9

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
4

5

B
T

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
4

8

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
3

6

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
3

0

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
3

9

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
3

6

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
2

9

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
2

5

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
2

3

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
1

2

G
U

B
T

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
5

.
4

3

G
U

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
6

.
1

2

B
T

B
T

B
T

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
2

.
7

9

B
T

B
T

B
T

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
4

.
1

0

B
T

B
T

B
T

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

T
A

C

M
A

R
K

E
T

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

O

A
K

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

A

5
 
B

E

R

W

Y

N

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

C

A
S

T
L
E

 S
T

R

E
E

T

T
A

X
I

T
A

C
S

I

ENTRY

NO

DIM
 M

YNEDIA
D

T
A

X
I

T
A

C
S

I

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

C
u

t
 
L

i
n

e
 
-
 
S

e
e

 
S

h
e

e
t
 
2

3.65m 3.65m

2.00m 2.00m

3.00m 3.00m

2.70m 2.60m

Original DrawingA  

This map is reproduced for Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behlad of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©
Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead
to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2012

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance
Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi © Hawifraint y Goran. Mae atgynhyrchu
heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goran a gall hyn arwain at erlniad neu achos sifll.
Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2012

Raised junction table with pedestrian

crossing points

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Tree to be retained subject to further survey and

assessment.

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Cross Section - Castle Street

WELSH TEXT

Existing Layout

WELSH TEXT

Proposed Layout -

Widened footways

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Uncontrolled crossing

WELSH TEXT

Upgrade of existing traffic signals

at A5/Castle Street junction.

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Key:

WELSH TEXT

Resurfaced carriageway

WELSH TEXT

Proposed LED lantern and bracket arm on existing

lighting column

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

LC

Widened footway

WELSH TEXT

Widened footway

WELSH TEXT

Widened footway

WELSH TEXT

Widened footway

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Disabled parking bay

WELSH TEXT

One way street to Castle

Street

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

One way street from Castle

Street

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Goods vehicle loading

only

WELSH TEXT

WESLH TEXT

Goods vehicle loading

only

WELSH TEXT

WESLH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No entry

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Limited waiting

WELSH TEXT

No waiting at any time

WELSH TEXT

No waiting at any time

WELSH TEXT

No stopping except taxis

WELSH TEXT

No waiting at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Yorkstone and slate paving

WELSH TEXT

Typical cross section location -

See inset above

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

P
age 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Heulfan

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Y Capel

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
(Library)

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
88.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Isallt

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Hafren

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Bronallt

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
33 to 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
Laburnum Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Ormonde House

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Filling

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
LONG VEHICLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
LONG VEHICLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
LONG VEHICLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
LONG VEHICLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
CYNLLUN/SCHEME

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
TEITL LLUNIAD/DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
RHIF LLUNIAD/DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
RHIF GRID/NATIONAL GRID REFERENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
CYMERADWYWYD GAN/APPROVED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
DYLUNIWYD GAN/DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
RHIF GWAITH/JOB NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
DYLUNIWYD/DRAWING SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
STATWS LLUNIAD/DRAWING STATUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
NEWIDIADU/AMENDMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
DYDDIAD NEWID OLAF/LAST EDIT DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
RHIF LLUNIAD/DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
ADRAN PRIFFYRDD A GWASANAETHAU AMGYLCHEDDOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
PENNAETH PRIFFYRDD A GWASANAETHAU AMGYLCHEDDOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
P:\Colwyn Bay\400757 NMWTRA Schemes\DCC Castle Street\CAD\DRAWINGS\18412-D-001 to 002 - Castle Street - Public Consultation Drawings.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
18412/D/001

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
4/6/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
4/6/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
JLV

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
SH

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
18412/D/001

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Sheet 1 of 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Public Consultation Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Llangollen 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
18412

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
N



T
his page is intentionally left blank



G
U

G
U

G
U

G
U

G
U

G
U

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

8

2

.

8

8

8

2

.

8

5

8

2

.

8

5

8

2

.

8

4

8

2

.

8

2

8

2

.

7

9

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
2

.
8

6

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
2

.
9

9

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
2

.
8

2

G
U

G
U

8
2

.
9

9
6

L

3
4

2
2

0
0

.
6

6
7

N

3
2

1
5

3
7

.
5

8
9

E

S
2

0
6

8
2

.
7

5
0

L

3
4

2
2

1
9

.
7

7
6

N

3
2

1
4

8
0

.
6

9
1

E

S
2

0
5

8
1

.
5

2
6

L

3
4

2
0

8
2

.
4

1
1

N

3
2

1
5

4
1

.
2

4
1

E

S
2

0
2

8
2

.
0

0
8

L

3
4

2
0

8
2

.
3

1
4

N

3
2

1
5

0
7

.
9

8
1

E

S
3

8
1

.
2

7
6

L

3
4

2
1

2
6

.
9

9
6

N

3
2

1
5

1
1

.
2

0
8

E

S
2

8
3

.
3

4
3

L

3
4

2
1

9
2

.
8

0
5

N

3
2

1
5

0
8

.
7

6
1

E

S
1

B
o

l
e

=
0

.
2

m

C
a

n
o

p
y
=

4
m

B
o

l
e

=
0

.
2

m

C
a

n
o

p
y
=

4
m

B
o

l
e

=
0

.
2

m

C
a

n
o

p
y
=

4
m

B
o

l
e

=
0

.
2

m

C
a

n
o

p
y
=

4
m

B
o

l
e

=
0

.
7

m

C
a

n
o

p
y
=

1
2

m

G
U

G
U

G
U

G
U

G
U

G
U

G
U

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

7
9

.
6

2

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

7
9

.
5

3

T
P

T
P

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

7

9

.
9

9

7

9

.
9

6

7

9

.
9

3

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

E
l
e

c
 
K

i
o

s
k

T
P

B
T

G
U

B
T

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

B
T

G
U

G
U

G
U

G
U

B
T

G
U

G
U

G
U

B
T

8

2

.
7

0

9

8

2

.
6

7

5

8

2

.
6

5

3

8

2

.
8

1

8

8

2

.
7

7

8

8

2

.
7

1

3

B
T

G
U

B
T

B
T

G
U

B
T

R
E

R
E

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
1

.
0

5

I
C

 
C

L
 
=

8
2

.
7

9

B
T

B
T

B
T

B
T

B
T

B
T

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

G
a

s

T
A

C

T
A

C

T
A

C

T
A

C

T
A

C

T
A

C

T
A

C

T
A

C

8

1

.

0

1

8

8

1

.

0

0

8

P
A

R

A
D

E
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

D

E

E

 

L

A

N

E

B

R

I

D

G

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

C
A

S
TLE

 S
TR

E
E

T

C

A
S

T
L
E

 S
T

R

E
E

T

A

5

4

2

 

A

B

B

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

A

5

3

9

 

M

I

L

L

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

TL

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

TL

TL

TL

C
u

t
 
L

i
n

e
 
-
 
S

e
e

 
S

h
e

e
t
 
1

LC

Raised junction table with pedestrian crossing points

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Uncontrolled crossing

WELSH TEXT

Raised table with pedestrian crossing point

WELSH TEXT

Raised table and widening of existing signal crossing

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Footway and drainage design in this area to be

confirmed.

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Bell bollards and guardrailing to protect footway from turning vehicles.

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Original DrawingA  

This map is reproduced for Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behlad of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©
Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead
to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2012

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance
Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi © Hawifraint y Goran. Mae atgynhyrchu
heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goran a gall hyn arwain at erlniad neu achos sifll.
Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2012

Uncontrolled crossing

WELSH TEXT

Widened footway

WELSH TEXT

Widened footway

WELSH TEXT

Widened footway

WELSH TEXT

No waiting at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Disabled parking bay

WELSH TEXT

Limited waiting and permit

holders parking

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Limited waiting and permit

holders parking

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Loading only

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

One way street from Castle

Street

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

One way street to Castle Street

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

No waiting or loading at any

time

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Goods vehicle loading

only

WELSH TEXT

WESLH TEXT

Key:

WELSH TEXT

Resurfaced carriageway

WELSH TEXT

Traffic signal poles

WELSH TEXT

Proposed LED lantern and bracket arm on existing

lighting column

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

New 5 metre lighting columns with LED lanterns

WELSH TEXT

TL

LC

LC

Yorkstone and slate paving

WELSH TEXT

Yorkstone paving

WELSH TEXT

150mm slate banding behind precast

concrete kerbs and tactile paving

WELSH TEXT

WELSH TEXT

Footway materials:

WELSH TEXT

Buff coloured tactile paving

WELSH TEXT

Footway materials - See inset above

WELSH TEXT

P
age 41

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Castell)

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Cip-or Bont

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
Llangollen Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
Royal

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
Abbey Sq

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
(Cwrt y

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
Bridge End

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
Castle

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
Courtyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
The Corn Mill (PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
CYNLLUN/SCHEME

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
TEITL LLUNIAD/DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
RHIF LLUNIAD/DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
RHIF GRID/NATIONAL GRID REFERENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
CYMERADWYWYD GAN/APPROVED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
DYLUNIWYD GAN/DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
RHIF GWAITH/JOB NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
DYLUNIWYD/DRAWING SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
STATWS LLUNIAD/DRAWING STATUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
NEWIDIADU/AMENDMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
DYDDIAD NEWID OLAF/LAST EDIT DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
RHIF LLUNIAD/DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
ADRAN PRIFFYRDD A GWASANAETHAU AMGYLCHEDDOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
PENNAETH PRIFFYRDD A GWASANAETHAU AMGYLCHEDDOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
P:\Colwyn Bay\400757 NMWTRA Schemes\DCC Castle Street\CAD\DRAWINGS\18412-D-001 to 002 - Castle Street - Public Consultation Drawings.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
18412/D/002

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
4/6/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
4/6/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
JLV

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
SH

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
18412/D/002

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Sheet 2 of 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Public Consultation Drawing

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
Llangollen 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
18412

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
N



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

P
age 43



 

P
age 44



 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E 

A summary of the proposed project 

Castle Street 

 Remove 14 parking spaces to enable both pavements to be widened 

 Provide 2 new goods vehicle loading bays 

 Provide 2 new disabled parking bays on Oak Street and Bridge Street adjacent to their respective 

junctions with Castle Street 

 Raise the road surface at side road junctions along Castle Street as speed reduction features 

 Provide pedestrian dropped kerb crossing points at a number of locations along Castle Street 

 Provide a new tree near the Parade Street junction 

 Repave the pavements using high quality Yorkstone paving and Berwyn Slate 

 Resurface the road in hot rolled asphalt 

Market Street 

 Make the section between Castle Street and East Street one way in a westerly direction 

 Provide 1 new goods vehicle loading bay 

Abbey Road/Castle Street Junction 

 Remove parking at the Abbey Road junction to allow the pavement to be widened 

 Provide pedestrian dropped kerb crossing point on the Abbey Road side of the T-junction 

 Raise the road surface at the junction as a speed reduction feature 

Church Street 

 Make Church Street one-way in a north-westerly direction 

 

Bridge Street/Castle Street Junction 

 

 Reduce the width of Bridge Street at its junction with Castle Street to reduce the speed of 

vehicles entering Bridge Street and to reduce the crossing distance for pedestrians 

 Provide 1 general loading bay 

Short Street 

 Close Short Street to motor vehicle traffic 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGY CREATIVITY DELIVERY

ENGAGEMENT REPORT
Llangollen 2020 Scheme
Revision C: 15 July 2021

July
2021

M20.145 Llangollen 2020/R.004.Report

Page 49



Page 50



Page 1

Contents

1.0	 Introduction	and	Background			 	 	 	 	 2

2.0	 How	The	Community	Were	Engaged	 	 	 	 3

3.0	 Engagement	Findings		 	 	 	 	 	 	 5
   
4.0	 Different	Perspectives	on	the	Proposals	 	 	 	 13
 
5.0	 Support	for	the	Llangollen	2020	Proposals	 	 	 17

6.0	 Emerging	Themes		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 18

7.0	 Conclusion		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 24

Page 51



Page 2

1.0	 Introduction	and	Background	
	 In	January	2018,	the	Llangollen	2020	Group	was	set	up	and	soon	after	they	initiated	the	Castle	Street	project	

to	consider	improving	traffic,	parking,	pedestrian	and	public	realm	issues	in	the	town.	The	Group	is	comprised	
of	the	two	County	Councillors	for	Llangollen,	one	of	whom,	is	Councillor	Graham	Timms	who	chairs	the	Group.	
The	Group	also	 includes	representatives	from	Llangollen	Town	Council.	Denbighshire	County	Council	officers	
and	 officials	 from	Welsh	 Government	 regularly	 attended	 project	 meetings	 with	 the	 Group	 to	 develop	 the	
Castle	Street	scheme.

	 In	2018,	Cadwyn	Clwyd	 funding	was	secured	 to	commission	Arcadis	Consulting	 (UK)	Limited	 to	undertake	a	
feasibility	study.	The	aims	of	the	study	were	to:

	 	The	aims	of	the	study	were	to1:	

• Develop	options	for	a	safe	and	pedestrian-friendly	town	centre;

• Develop	options	to	improve	the	operation	of	key	junctions	and	the	movement	of	traffic	around	and	
through	the	town;

• Rationalise	signage	to	and	within	the	study	area;

• Develop	town	centre	parking	options,	and

• Quantify,	where	possible,	the	extent	to	which	these	changes	would	enhance	the	town	economically,	
environmentally	and	socially	and	thus	contribute	to	county	and	national	strategies.		

 
	 The	feasibility	study	process	was	 informed	by	community	and	stakeholder	engagement	alongside	a	range	of	

components	including	traffic	surveys,	junction	modelling	and	a	parking	and	signage	review,	as	well	as	learning	
from	case	studies	and	precedents.		The	feasibility	study	was	published	in	January	2019	and	has	informed	the	
design	of	a	detailed	scheme.		This	process	has	resulted	in	funding	being	secured	for	a	scheme	that	will:	

• Remove	on-street	parking	from	Castle	Street	to	enable	the	pavements	to	be	permanently	widened.	

• Provide	two	loading	bays	on	Castle	Street	and	one	on	Market	Street.

• Provide	disabled	parking	bays	at	the	Castle	Street	end	of	Oak	Street	and	Bridge	Street

• Introduce	pedestrian	dropped	kerb	crossings	at	a	number	of	locations	along	Castle	Street.

• Re-pave	Castle	Street	with	high	quality	kerb	and	footway	paving	materials.

• Raise	the	road	surface	at	some	side	road	junctions	along	Castle	Street	to	reduce	traffic	speeds.

• Provide	14	short	stay	car	parking	spaces	in	Market	Street	car	park.

• Make	Market	Street	one-way	in	a	westerly	direction	between	its	junctions	with	Castle	Street	and	East	
Street.

• Remove	on-street	parking	from	Abbey	Road	at	its	junction	with	Castle	Street,	to	enable	the	northerly	
pavement	of	Abbey	Road	to	be	permanently	widened.

• Provide	a	pedestrian	dropped	kerb	crossing	across	Abbey	Road	near	to	the	railway	station	entrance.

	 Having	 secured	 funding	 support	 to	deliver	 the	 scheme	during	financial	 year	2021/22,	 it	 is	 now	appropriate	
to	 undertake	 another	 programme	 of	 community	 and	 stakeholder	 engagement,	 to	 obtain	 feedback	 on	 the	
proposed	scheme	and	to	identify	and	understand	any	concerns.		

1 Llangollen 2020 Project: Feasibility Study February 2019, Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited

Page 52

https://cadwynclwyd.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/1.-Llangollen-2020-Project-Feasibility-Study-Report_FINAL-with-appendices.pdf


2.0	 How	The	Community	Were	Engaged
2.1	 2018	Engagement	
	 In	July	2018	an	initial	engagement	took	place	that	included:	

• On-street	engagement	over	an	afternoon	/	evening.	

• Over	300	responses	to	a	survey.	

• Engagement	with	local	business.	

• Meetings	with	key	stakeholders.	

	 The	engagement	process	highlighted	the	following	issues	and	opportunities2:	

• The	perception	that	Castle	Street	is	dangerous	for	vehicles	and	pedestrians,	due	to	on-street	parking,	
illegal	 stopping,	 proportion	 of	HGVs,	 buses	 and	 coaches,	 illegally	 parked	 lorries/vans	 and	 a	 lack	 of	
crossing	facilities.	Coaches	turning	into	Market	Street	from	Castle	Street	cause	congestion.

• Opportunities	for	Castle	Street	include	public	realm	improvements,	involving	the	removal	of	on-street	
parking	 in	 this	 location.	 There	 could	 be	 an	 opportunity	 to	 incorporate	 delivery	 areas	 along	 Castle	
Street.	

• The	 lack	of	parking	 in	Llangollen	was	considered	to	have	a	detrimental	 impact	as	 it	puts	people	off	
from	 visiting.	 There	 is	 not	 considered	 to	 be	 enough	 resident-only	 parking	 areas.	Whilst	 a	 number	
of	residents	pay	for	parking	permits	 for	Market	Street	car	park,	there	 is	still	no	guarantee	they	can	
secure	a	space.

• Better	enforcement	of	parking	infringements	in	car	parks	and	on-street	and	increase	the	amount	of	
dedicated	parking	for	residents	in	Llangollen.

• Market	 Street	 Car	 Park	 is	 underutilised.	 Coaches	 are	 not	 considered	 to	make	 the	 best	 use	 of	 the	
available	 space.	 A	 number	 of	 respondents	 felt	 that	 coaches	 should	 not	 park	 in	 the	Market	 Street	
car	 park,	 as	 it	 would	 free	 up	 space	 for	 cars	 and	 need	 a	 designated	 drop	 off	 point	 and	 then	 park	
elsewhere,for	example,	the	Pavilion.

• Measures	should	be	put	in	place	to	prohibit	/	discourage	HGVs	from	using	Castle	Street	as	a	through	
route.	Such	measures	could	include	putting	weight	restrictions	on	the	bridge	over	the	River	Dee.

	 In	October	2018,	a	further	phase	of	engagement	shared	the	draft	option	with	the	community.		At	this	point	in	
the	engagement	process	feedback	from	the	public	included3:

 
• General	support	for	removing	on-street	car	parking	from	Castle	Street	and	the	creation	of	goods	only	

loading	bays;

• Better	use	of	existing	car	parks	and	exploring	opportunities	to	utilise	other	assets,	 for	example	use	
of	 Ysgol	 Dinas	 Bran	 during	 August	 should	 be	 explored	 to	 provide	 extra	 capacity	 within	 the	 town,	
together	with	the	reduction	in	the	provision	for	coach	parking	within	the	Market	Street	car	park,	in	
order	to	free	up	capacity;

• There	was	widespread	support	 for	a	mini	 roundabout	to	be	 introduced	at	 the	Abbey	Road	/	Castle	
Street	junction;	and

• A	consideration	of	 the	opportunity	 to	close	Market	Street	between	Castle	Street	and	Greenfield	 to	
traffic.

 
	 Following	 this	 engagement	 process	 a	 preferred	 option	 for	 the	 engagement	 of	 Llangollen	 Town	 Centre	was	

developed.		This	option	has	since	been	through	a	development	process	to	arrive	at	the	final	proposed	scheme.		

2 Llangollen 2020 Project: Feasibility Study February 2019, Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited
3 Llangollen 2020 Project: Feasibility Study February 2019, Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited

Page 3

Page 53

https://cadwynclwyd.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/1.-Llangollen-2020-Project-Feasibility-Study-Report_FINAL-with-appendices.pdf
https://cadwynclwyd.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/1.-Llangollen-2020-Project-Feasibility-Study-Report_FINAL-with-appendices.pdf


Page 4

2.2	 June		-	July	2021	Engagement	Activity	
	 A	further	phase	of	engagement	on	the	proposed	final	scheme	took	place	between	14	June	and	6	July	2021.	

This	phase	included:

 Letter	Drop:		A	letter	drop	to	approximately	2,000	homes	and	businesses	in	Llangollen	informing	them	about	
the	proposals	and	inviting	them	to	participate	in	the	engagement	process.	

 Online	Engagement:		An	online	engagement	hosted	on	the	Denbighshire	County	Council	Portal.	Through	this	
portal	there	were	1,076	downloads	of	the	materials	available	online.	

 Questionnaire:		The	community	could	complete	a	questionnaire	online	through	the	portal.	Paper	copies	with	
a	freepost	envelope	were	also	provided	at	the	engagement	event.	 In	total	507	surveys	were	completed	and	
returned.	

 Public	Exhibition:	 	A	 	socially	distanced	and	COVID-19	secure,	public	exhibition	took	place	outside	the	Town	
Hall	from	Monday,	21	June	to	Friday,	25	June	2021.		Approximately	450	people	attended	the	event,	to	talk	to	
the	project	team.		Attendees	were	also	offered	the	opportunity	to	complete	the	questionnaire.	

 Business	Visits:	Council	officers	visited	34	local	businesses	to	provide	an	opportunity	for	them	to	raise	their	
issues	and	concerns.	 	Businesses	were	also	encouraged	 to	attend	 the	public	exhibition	and	/	or	 complete	a	
questionnaire.	 	 In	 total	 95	questionnaires	were	 returned	by	people	who	described	 themselves	 as	owning	a	
business	in	Llangollen.		

 Engagement	with	Visual	 Impaired	 (VI)	Group:	Members	of	 the	visual	 impaired	community	were	 invited	 to	
participate	in	the	engagement	through	an	online	or	face	to	face	event.		They	opted	to	submit	their	feedback	
via	 Denbighshire	 County	 Council’s	 Vision	 Support	 officer.	 	 7	 member	 of	 the	 community	 submitted	 their	
comments	through	this	mechanism.		

 Post	or	Email:	Members	of	the	public	could	also	provide	comment	and	feedback	by	writing	to	or	emailing	the	
Council.	

 Social	 Media	 Listening:	 Social	 media	 listening	 is	 the	 process	 of	 monitoring	 social	 media	 platforms	 for	
comments	and	feedback	related	to	the	proposals.		

2.3	 Analysing	and	Understanding	What	the	Community	Told	Us
	 All	 engagement	 activity	 was	 recorded	 and	 logged	 in	 an	 appropriate	 manner.	 All	 engagement	 tools	 were	

designed	to	capture	 information	and	 feedback	 from	participants,	whether	 this	be	notes	 from	discussions	or	
completion	of	a	questionnaire.	

	 Quantitative	data	from	the	questionnaire	was	analysed	using	a	two	step	process:

	 Stage	1.		Tabulation	Analysis
	 In	 essence	 tabulation	 analysis	 involves	 laying	 out	 data	 in	 easy	 	 to	 understand	 summary	 tables.	 This	

commenced	 with	 a	 frequency	 distribution	 analysis,	 which	 communicates	 the	 number	 of	 respondents	 who	
gave	 each	 possible	 answer	 to	 a	 question.	 This	 enables	 an	 understanding	 of	 the	 number	 	 and	 	 percentage		
of	 respondents	who	gave	 answers	 to	 each	question	and	provides	 an	overview	of	 the	pattern	of	 responses,	
which	informed	further	tabulation	and	analysis.		Further	analysis	of	the	data	took	the	form	of	cross-tabulation	
process	which	enabled	the	cross-referencing	of		responses		to	one	question	relative	to	responses	from	one	or	
more	questions.	For	example,	this	process	will	enable	us	to	understand	if	local	business	owners	have	different	
perspectives	to	local	residents.	

	 Stage	2.		Statistical	Analysis:			
	 The	 next	 stage	 was	 to	 undertake	 statistical	 analysis	 to	 examine	 the	 data	 further	 and	 identify	 or	 confirm	

patterns	 to	 determine	 if	 they	 are	 statistically	 significant	 e,g.	 “if	 a	 particular	 difference	 is	 large	 enough	 to	
be	 unlikely	 to	 have	 occurred	 due	 to	 chance	 or	 sampling	 error,	 then	 the	 difference	 is	 statistically	 significant	
(Wilson,	2019).4”

4 Market Research, Delivering Customer Insight by Alan Wilson (2019), Published by Red Globe Press Page 54



Page 5

	 Qualitative	data	gathered	 through	 techniques	 such	as	discussions	with	members	of	 the	public,	open	ended	
questionnaire	responses,	emails	and	 letters,	was	analysed	using	 inductive	coding,	whereby	the	data	collated	
was	reviewed	to	identify	words	or	phrases	that	participants	use	repeatedly.	These	were	used	as	codes	to	look	
for	themes	and	patterns	in	responses.

3.0	 Engagement	Findings	
3.1	 Introduction
 This	 section	 of	 the	 report	 presents	 the	 results	 of	 the	 507	 questionnaire	 responses	 received	 during	 the	

engagement	period.		54%	of	respondents	described	themselves	as	“I	live	in	or	near	Llangollen,	and	I	work	or	
volunteer	in	the	town	/	I	don’t	work	(e.g.	retired)”.		Figure	1	below	shows	the	make	up	of	respondents	to	the	
survey.	

 Figure	1.	How	Would	You	Describe	Yourself	

 

86

9

273

16

85

6 26 6
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

1

How Would you Describe Yourself?

I own a business in Llangollen, and I live in town or nearby

I own a business in Llangollen, but I live elsewhere

I live in or near Llangollen, and I work or volunteer in the town / I don't work (e.g. retired)

I work or volunteer in Llangollen, but I live elsewhere

I live in or near Llangollen but I work or volunteer elsewhere

I am visiting Llangollen from elsewhere in Denbighshire

I am visiting Llangollen from elsewhere

No Response

  
     

Page 55



Page 6

3.2		 Removing	on-street	parking	to	make	the	pavements	wider	on	Castle	Street
 Respondents	were	asked	about	the	proposal	to	remove	on-street	parking	on	Castle	Street	to	make	pavements	

wider	on	Castle	Street.	Figure	2	below	shows	that	just	under	half	of	survey	respondents	strongly	agreed	with	
this	proposal.		

	 Figure	2.	Removing	on	street	parking	to	make	the	pavements	wider	on	Castle	Street	is	acceptable?

 

49%

14%

1%

7%

29%

0%

Removing	on-street	parking	to	make	the	
pavements	wider	on	Castle	Street	is	acceptable.

Strongly agree

Somewhat agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Somewhat disagree

Strongly disagree

No opinion

 Among	those	who	disagreed	or	strongly	disagreed	with	the	proposals	the	main	concerns	raised	included:

• The	impact	on	 local	businesses	of	the	removal	of	parking	on	Castle	Street	-	“removing	ALL	pop	and	
shop	 parking	 on	 Castle	 St	 hurts	 local	 shops,	 9	months	 of	 the	 year	 are	 very	 quiet”	 (questionnaire	
respondent).	 During	 business	 visits	 one	 owner	 explained	 the	 loss	 of	 “pop	 and	 shop”	 parking	 had	
already	impacted	their	business	with	customers	opting	to	go	to	Aldi	instead.		

• The	impact	on	people	with	disabilities	-	“I	am	disabled	and	cannot	walk	from	the	car	park	to	get	my	
meat	and	bread	 in	Castle	Street.	 It	 is	 far	harder	to	cross	Castle	Street	now	with	the	planters	 in	the	
way”	(questionnaire	respondent).	

• The	road	being	too	narrow	to	accommodate	two	large	vehicles	passing	-	“I	take	it	you	understand	that	
the	Dee	Bridge	is	a	major	crossing	point	over	the	river	and	that	you	have	coaches,	trucks	and	other	
vehicles	trying	to	make	their	way	down	Castle	Street?	You	can’t	squeeze	large	vehicles	in	a	reduced	
highway	with	out	causing	problems	i.e.	log	jams”	(comment	on	Llangollen	2020	Facebook	page).	

• What	 wider	 pavements	 might	 be	 used	 for	-	 “the	 idea	 of	 extending	 the	 pavements	 only	 allows	
businesses	 and	 cafés	 to	 extend	 onto	 the	 pavement.	 Llangollen	 is	 not	 conducive	 to	 outdoor	 cafe	
culture	as	the	main	fare	is	low	grade	kebab	and	pie	and	chips”	(questionnaire	respondent”.	

• Respondents	also	mentioned	concerns	around	levels	of	a	boards	and	business	displays	currently	on	
pavements	in	the	town.	

	 In	addition,	there	is	a	perception	among	some	participants	that	the	current	scheme	to	widen	the	pavements,	
using	planters,	to	support	social	distancing	is	an	illustration	that	the	proposal	won’t	work	as	illustrated	in	the	
quote	below:

Page 56



Page 7

 
 “Widening the pavement is no advantage, the pavement area is being used by cyclists and shops. Since the 

temporary widening of the pavement in Castle Street traffic problems have been made worse. Dreadful to 
cross the road if a small amount of traffic speeds. If there’s a lot of traffic it all gets held up and vehicles 
mount pavements. These hold ups cause long queues when traffic moves again I walk to town and through 
town most days.”

	 	 Questionnaire	Respondent

3.3	 Removing	 on-street	 parking	 to	 widen	 the	 northerly	 pavement	 on	 Abbey	 Road	 (the	 side	 opposite	 the	
railway	and	the	canal)

	 Figure	 3	 below	 shows	 that	 44%	 of	 respondents	 strongly	 agree	 with	 the	 proposal,	 compared	 to	 33%	 who	
somewhat	disagree	or	strongly	disagree.	

 Figure	3.		Removing	on-street	parking	to	widen	the	northerly	pavement	on	Abbey	Road	(the	side	opposite	
the	railway	and	the	canal)	is	acceptable?

44%

16%

7%

7%

26%

0%

Removing	on-street	parking	to	widen	the	northerly	
pavement	on	Abbey	Road	(the	side	opposite	the	

railway	and	the	canal)	is	acceptable.

Strongly agree

Somewhat agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Somewhat disagree

Strongly disagree

No opinion

	 Those	 who	 support	 the	 removal	 of	 on-street	 parking	 cited	 reasons	 including	 it	 “will	 allow	 traffic	 to	 flow	
without	 any	 obstacles	 causing	 problems”	 (questionnaire	 respondent)	 and	 improved	 safety	 “crossing	 the	
road	 has	 been	 very	 challenging	 as	 the	 parked	 cars	 reduce	 visibility	 and	 run	 the	 risk	 of	 children	 and	 adults	
being	 reversed	 into	or	 (in	 the	 case	of	 children)	 being	hit	 by	 a	 car	 after	 stepping	out	 from	behind	 a	 parked	
car.	Removing	the	parking	will	improve	visibility	for	drivers	as	they	will	be	able	to	see	those	stepping	out	into	
the	road	and	also	pedestrians	will	have	a	better	view	of	 the	traffic	making	 it	easier	 to	cross”	 (questionnaire	
respondent).		

Page 57



Page 8

	 However,	 as	 with	 the	 proposed	 removal	 of	 on-street	 parking	 in	 Castle	 Street	 there	 is	 concern	 about	 the	
impact	on	business	as	well	as	on	residents	“losing	parking	spaces	to	the	north	side	of	Abbey	Road	has	made	
it	 extremely	 difficult	 for	 Abbey	 Road	 residents	 to	 park,	 it’s	 only	 the	mid	 to	 end	 of	 Abbey	 Road	 that	 have	
driveways”	(questionnaire	response)	and	“by	removing	parking	on	Castle	Street	and	Abbey	Road	you	will	force	
people	to	park	in	side	streets.	Residents	already	have	a	problem	parking”	(questionnaire	response).	 	As	with	
Castle	Street	(3.2)	the	widened	pavements	raise	concerns	about	large	vehicles	and	“on	street	clutter.”	

3.4	 Making	a	short	section	of	Market	Street	one-way	to	allow	a	loading	bay	to	be	provided
	 Figure	4	below	shows	 that	 just	under	half	of	 respondents	 strongly	agree	with	 this	proposal,	 compared	 to	a	

quarter	who	strongly	or	somewhat	disagree.		

  Figure	 4.	 	 Making	 a	 short	 section	 of	 Market	 Street	 one-way	 to	 allow	 a	 loading	 bay	 to	 be	 provided	 is	
acceptable?

49%

18%

7%

7%

18%
1%

Making	a	short	section	of	Market	Street	one-way	
to	allow	a	loading	bay	to	be	provided	is	

acceptable.

Strongly agree

Somewhat agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Somewhat disagree

Strongly disagree

No opinion

	 The	proposed	loading	bay	raised	a	number	of	concerns	including:

• That	a	commercial	loading	bay	will	not	meet	the	needs	of	all	local	businesses	-	“these	measures	are	
‘too	 little	too	 late’	 if	 they	were	designed	to	help	post	covid.	As	a	small	business	 I	find	 it	 impossible	
to	1.	Deliver	raw	goods	to	my	kitchen.	2.	Collect	baked	goods	or	deliveries.	The	‘commercial’	loading	
bays	will	be	not	help	as	I	am	too	small	to	get	it	delivered”	(questionnaire	respondent).

• That	the	loading	bays	will	have	a	negative	impact	on	the	flow	of	traffic	and	have	the	potential	to	be	
abused	-	“I	think	loading	bays	would	be	a	log	jam	waiting	to	happen	and	so	discount	the	excellent	idea	
of	 free	and	slowly,	but	continuous	moving	traffic.	The	world	and	his	wife	will	be	using	and	abusing	
these	loading	bays,	to	pop	and	shop	(which	would	block	an	even	narrower	high	street)	as	there	is	no	
real	 traffic	warden	presence	 in	 Llangollen	 to	 police	 these	proposed	bays”	 (comment	on	 Llangollen	
2020	facebook	page).

Page 58



Page 9

• The	potential	for	the	bay	to	be	a	hazard		-“using	the	loading	bay	in	Market	Street	to	transfer	goods	to	
shops	is	potentially	dangerous,	particularly	carrying	large	carcasses	to	the	butchers	shop,	which	also	
has	health	and	safety	implications.	Security	is	compromised	as	lorry	would	have	to	be	left	unattended	
and	out	of	sight”	(questionnaire	respondent).

	 Respondents	 expressed	 concern	 that	 the	 proposed	 one-way	 system	 could	 impact	 traffic	 flow	 and	 create	
confusion	 “Market	 Street	 should	 remain	 ‘two	way’	 and	 should	not	be	made	one	way	 from	Castle	 Street	 to	
East	Street.	People	are	currently	still	driving	the	wrong	way	on	this	section	of	 road	despite	 the	hundreds	of	
temporary	signs	in	place.	It’s	pure	luck	that	an	accident	hasn’t	occurred	yet”	(questionnaire	response).	

 
3.5	 Providing	14	 free	1-hour	parking	 spaces	 in	Market	 Street	 car	park	will	 help	make	up	 for	 the	 loss	of	on-

street	parking	on	Castle	Street.
	 As	 shown	 in	Figure	5	below	while	67%	of	 respondents	 strongly	or	 somewhat	agree	with	 the	proposal,	27%	

strongly	or	somewhat	disagree.	

	 	Figure	5.	Providing	14	free	1-hour	parking	spaces	in	Market	Street	car	park	will	help	make	up	for	the	loss	of	
on-street	parking	on	Castle	Street?

51%

16%

4%

7%

20%

2%

Providing	14	free	1-hour	parking	spaces	in	Market	
Street	car	park	will	help	make	up	for	the	loss	of	

on-street	parking	on	Castle	Street.

Strongly agree

Somewhat agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Somewhat disagree

Strongly disagree

No opinion

	 Among	 those	 who	 responded	 to	 an	 open	 ended	 question	 asking	 for	 why	 they	 did	 or	 did	 not	 support	 the	
proposed	scheme	20%	mentioned	issues	or	concerns	related	to	parking.		The	proposal	to	provide	free	1	hour	
parking	spaces	in	Market	Street	car	park	raised	questions	and	concerns	around:

• How	 the	 free	 1	 hour	 parking	 limit	will	 be	 enforced	-	 “providing	 the	 14	 free	 1	 hour	 parking	 spaces	
is	 Market	 Street	 car	 park	 is	 a	 good	 idea,	 but	 it	 will	 need	 to	 be	 monitored	 or	 it	 will	 be	 abused”	
(questionnaire	respondent).

• That	the	proposal	will	not	reduce	congestion	in	the	town,	but	result	in	more	tourists	driving	around	
to	locate	available	parking.	 Page 59



Page 10

• That	14	spaces	 is	 insufficient	and	will	not	reduce	the	 impact	of	the	 loss	of	“pop	and	shop	parking”	
-	“14	spaces	to	accommodate	the	lost	spaces	is	not	enough.	Locals	shop	between	8.30am	and	10am	
on	the	whole	at	weekends	to	avoid	the	crowds.	So	not	enough	spaces	to	cover	the	locals!	Better	to	
give	free	parking	for	an	hour	first	thing	so	you	don’t	lose	local	custom.	IF	locals	go	elsewhere	then	the	
local	shops	will	suffer	in	winter”	(questionnaire	response).

• That	 the	 scheme	 doesn’t	 provide	 enough	 disabled	 parking	 and	 it	 is	 in	 the	 wrong	 locations	 	-	 “no	
regard	for	disabled	residents	-	for	whom	the	walk	from	Market	Street	car	park	is	too	much.	I	am	now	
unable	to	access	shops	on	Castle	Street,	since	changes	made.	Traffic	has	increased	the	time	taken	to	
travel	through	the	village	massively”	(questionnaire	respondent).	

 
	 Overall,	in	relation	to	parking	the	analysis	of	qualitative	data	suggests	there	is	a	perception	that	“the	scheme	

does	not	address	the	main	problem	i.e.	parking	in	the	town	especially	for	locals”	(questionnaire	respondent).

3.6	 Introducing	a	20	mph	speed	limit	and	‘ramped’	road	surface	at	the	Bridge	Street	junction	will	make	Castle	
Street	safer.

	 53%	of	 survey	 respondents	 strongly	 agree	with	 the	proposal,	 compared	 to	22%	who	 somewhat	or	 strongly	
disagree.	With		53%	strongly	agreeing	this	is	the	most	popular	element	of	the	scheme.	

	 Figure	 6.	 Introducing	 a	 20	mph	 speed	 limit	 and	 ‘ramped’	 road	 surface	 at	 the	Bridge	 Street	 junction	will	
make	Castle	Street	safer?

53%

15%

9%

5%

17%
1%

Introducing	a	20	mph	speed	limit	and	‘ramped’	
road	surface	at	the	Bridge	Street	junction	will	

make	Castle	Street	safer.

Strongly agree

Somewhat agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Somewhat disagree

Strongly disagree

No opinion

	 Overall	 the	response	to	the	20mph	speed	 limit	 is	positive	“I	agree	the	20mph	is	good	for	ALL	round	safety”	
(questionnaire	 respondent).	However,	 a	 number	of	 respondents	 expressed	 that	 they	 “agree	with	 a	 20	mph	
speed	 limit	 throughout	 the	 town	 centre,	 but	 do	 not	 think	 that	 ramps	 on	 any	 street	 are	 a	 good	 option”	
(questionnaire	respondent).		

Page 60



Page 11

	 Among	a	significant	proportion	of	 respondents	 it	was	 felt	 that	a	zebra	crossing	was	 the	solution	 for	making	
Castle	Street	safer	-	“why	can’t	we	have	a	pedestrian	crossing	on	Castle	Street?”	and	“no	pedestrian	crossing!	
What	are	you	doing?”	were	examples	of	questionnaire	responses	in	relation	to	this	idea.	

	 As	with	the	free	parking	spaces	people	questioned	“who	will	monitor	the	new	proposed	speed	restriction	of	
20mph?	If	it	is	not	monitored,	then	it	will	probably	be	ignored”	(questionnaire	respondent).		

3.7	 The	proposed	scheme	will	make	Castle	Street	a	more	attractive	place	for	shoppers	and	visitors
	 There	is	a	clear	concern	among	respondents	about	the	current	appearance	of	the	town	-	“the	town	depends	

on	 visitors,	 especially	 the	 shopkeepers.	 At	 present	 it	 looks	 untidy,	 depressing	 and	 scruffy”	 (questionnaire	
response).	 	 Figure	7	below	 shows	 that	46%	of	 respondents	 to	 the	 survey	 strongly	 agree	 that	 the	proposed	
scheme	will	make	Castle	Street	a	more	attractive	place	for	shoppers	and	visitors.	

	 Figure	7.	The	proposed	scheme	will	make	Castle	Street	a	more	attractive	place	for	shoppers	and	visitors?

46%

14%

9%

7%

22%

2%

The	proposed	scheme	will	make	Castle	Street	a	
more	attractive	place	for	shoppers	and	visitors.

Strongly agree

Somewhat agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Somewhat disagree

Strongly disagree

No opinion

	 Among	 those	 who	 agree	 with	 this	 statement	 there	 is	 a	 general	 consensus	 that	 “the	 changes	 will	 have	 a	
positive	effect	 for	 the	 town	and	make	 it	more	attractive	 for	visitors”	and	“I	 think	 the	scheme	will	make	 the	
area	more	 attractive”	 (questionnaire	 responses).	However,	 amongst	 this	 group	 there	 are	 some	who	 “whilst	
I	approve	of	the	proposals	as	they	stand	I	strongly	believe	that	they	do	not	go	nearly	far	enough	and	that	a	
huge	opportunity	for	a	shared	space	scheme	has	been	missed.	The	proposals	largely	will	improve	the	look	of	
the	town	centre	only	(questionnaire	response).	There	is	also	a	belief	that	the	scheme	should	be	used	to	plant	
more	trees	and	bring	more	plants	into	the	town	for	example	“could	more	street	trees	and	planting	be	added	
to	help	Llangollen	make	a	contribution	to	climate	change”	(questionnaire	respondent).	

Page 61



Page 12

	 Those	who	disagree	with	the	statement	cite	a	belief	that	the	proposal	will	take	away	what	makes	Llangollen	
special	 “Llangollen	 is	 a	 quirky,	 quaint	 country	 town,	 chipping	 away	 at	 all	 the	 little	 bits	 in	 the	 town	 will	
eventually	tun	it	into	something	totally	different,	to	the	regret	of	all	of	us”	(questionnaire	respondent).		As	well	
as	having	the	potential	 to	negatively	 impact	on	the	town	-	“the	scheme	 is	very	unattractive	and	discourages	
tourism	 /	 shopping”	 (questionnaire	 respondent)	 and	 “there	 are	 no	 significant	 benefits	 as	 a	 result	 of	 the	
scheme,	whilst	the	charm	and	character	of	the	town	is	diminished”	(questionnaire	respondent).	

3.8	 The	proposed	scheme	will	make	me	more	likely	to	walk	or	cycle	around	the	town.
	 Whilst	 37%	 of	 respondents	 strongly	 agreed	with	 the	 statement	 ‘the	 proposed	 scheme	will	make	me	more	

likely	to	walk	or	cycle	around	the	town’	29%	strongly	disagreed.	

	 Figure	8.	The	proposed	scheme	will	make	me	more	likely	to	walk	or	cycle	around	the	town?

37%

10%15%

4%

29%

5%

The	proposed	scheme	will	make	me	more	likely	to	
walk	or	cycle	around	the	town.

Strongly agree

Somewhat agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Somewhat disagree

Strongly disagree

No opinion

	 Respondents	 felt	 that	 proposed	 changes	 such	 as	 “removal	 of	 parking	 on	 Castle	 Street	will	make	 the	 street	
easier	to	cross,	and	make	it	easier	to	cycle	along”	(questionnaire	response).		However,	there	was	evidence	of	a	
divide	between	walkers	and	cyclists	-	“I	feel	there	is	not	enough	safe	cycle	access.	I	am	happy	to	walk	but	cycle	
improvements	could	be	made”	(questionnaire	responses).		Issues	raised	by	cyclists	included:

• That	 the	 scheme	 does	 not	 include	-	 “cycle	 routes	 /	 cycle	 lanes.	 Clearer	 places	 /	 further	 places	 for	
securing	bicycles”	(questionnaire	response).	

• Concerns	about	narrowing	of	roads	to	widen	pavements		-	“as	a	frequent	cyclist,	I	wonder	if	one	could	
add	 signage	or	marking	 to	make	cycling	 safer	on	Castle	 Street;	 e.g.,	 I	would	not	want	 cars	passing	
cyclists	narrowly	because	of	the	overall	reduced	width	of	the	road”	(questionnaire	response).	

Page 62



Page 13

• That	 the	 proposed	 scheme	 doesn’t	 link	 with	 other	 cycle	 routes	 in	 the	 area	-	 the	 scheme	 should	
include	“a	safe	cycle	route	that	extends	well	beyond	the	town	centre	and	links	up	specific	areas	such	
as	the	Pavilion	or	the	new	nature	reserve”	(questionnaire	response).	

 Among	pedestrians	there	was	a	concern	that	“widening	the	pavement	is	no	advantage,	the	pavement	area	is	
being	used	by	cyclists	and	shops”	(questionnaire	response).	

4.0	 Different	Perspectives	on	the	Proposals
4.1	 Introduction	
		 This	section	of	the	report	compares	opinions	on	the	7	proposals,	that	form	the	basis	of	the	scheme,	by	type	

of	respondent.		Respondents	have	been	classified	based	on	how	they	answered	the	question	‘how	would	you	
describe	yourself?’:

 Business	Owners:	I	own	a	business	in	Llangollen,	and	I	live	in	town	or	nearby	or	I	own	a	business	in	Llangollen,	
but	I	live	elsewhere.		95	respondents	came	from	this	category.	

 Live	and/or	Work/Volunteer	in	Llangollen:	I	live	in	or	near	Llangollen,	and	I	work	or	volunteer	in	the	town	/	
I	don’t	work	(e.g.	retired),	I	work	or	volunteer	in	Llangollen,	but	I	live	elsewhere	or	I	live	in	or	near	Llangollen	
but	I	work	or	volunteer	elsewhere.		374	respondents	defined	themselves	as	being	part	of	this	category.	

 
	 Visitors:	I	am	visiting	Llangollen	from	elsewhere	in	Denbighshire	or	I	am	visiting	Llangollen	from	elsewhere.		32	

respondents	defined	themselves	as	a	visitor.	

	 6	respondents	did	not	answer	the	question	‘how	would	you	describe	yourself?’

4.2	 Proposals	for	Castle	Street	
	 Figure	9	below	shows	that	business	owners	are	the	group	most	 likely	to	oppose	(strongly	disagree	with)	the	

proposal	 to	 remove	on	 street	parking	and	make	pavements	wider	 in	Castle	Street.	49%	of	business	owners	
strongly	disagree	with	the	proposal,	with	34%	strongly	agreeing	with	the	idea.

	 Figure	9.	What	do	different	types	of	respondents	think	about	the	proposal	to	remove	on	street	parking	on	
Castle	Street	to	make	the	pavements	wider?

 

34%

8%
1% 1%

49%

7%

49%

14%

1%
8%

23%

5%

47%

13%

6% 0%

22%

13%

STRONGLY AGREE SOMEWHAT AGREE NEITHER AGREE NOR 
DISAGREE

SOMEWHAT DISAGREE STRONGLY DISAGREE NO OPINION

Removing	on-street	parking	to	make	the	pavements	wider	on	
Castle	Street	is	acceptable?

Business Owners Live and/or Work/Volunteer in Lllangollen Visitors

Page 63



Page 14

4.3	 Proposals	for	Abbey	Road	
	 As	shown	in	figure	10,	the	proposal	to	remove	parking	to	enable	the	Abbey	Road	pavement	to	be	widened	was	

much	more	popular	with	residents	and	visitors	than	with	business	owners.	Just	over	half	of	business	owners	
(51%)	somewhat	or	strongly	disagree	with	this	proposal.

	 Figure	10.	What	do	different	types	of	respondents	think	about	the	proposal	to	remove	on	street	parking	to	
widen	the	northerly	pavement	on	Abbey	Road?

24%

12%
7% 8%

43%

5%

45%

16%

7% 7%

20%

6%

50%

13%

3% 3%

19%

13%

STRONGLY AGREE SOMEWHAT AGREE NEITHER AGREE NOR 
DISAGREE

SOMEWHAT DISAGREE STRONGLY DISAGREE NO OPINION

Removing	on-street	parking	to	widen	the	northerly	pavement	
on	Abbey	Road	(the	side	opposite	the	railway	and	the	canal)	is	

acceptable?

Business Owners Live and/or Work/Volunteer in Lllangollen Visitors

4.4	 Proposals	for	Market	Street	
	 Figure	11	shows	strong	support	for	the	proposal	among	visitors	and	those	who	live	and	/	or	work	/	volunteer	

in	Llangollen	for	this	proposal.		31%	of	businesses	also	strongly	agree,	however,	36%	strongly	disagree	with	the	
proposal	for	Market	Street.	

	 Figure	 11.	What	 do	different	 types	of	 respondents	 think	 about	 the	proposal	 to	make	 a	 short	 section	of	
Market	Street	one	way	to	allow	a	loading	bay	to	be	provided	is	acceptable?

31%

16%

3%
7%

36%

7%

50%

17%

8%
5%

13%

7%

50%

16%

3% 6%

13% 13%

STRONGLY AGREE SOMEWHAT AGREE NEITHER AGREE NOR 
DISAGREE

SOMEWHAT DISAGREE STRONGLY DISAGREE NO OPINION

Making	a	short	section	of	Market	Street	one-way	to	allow	a	
loading	bay	to	be	provided	is	acceptable?

Business Owners Live and/or Work/Volunteer in Lllangollen Visitors

Page 64



Page 15

4.5	 14	Free	1	Hour	Parking	Spaces
 45%	of	businesses	owners	strongly	or	somewhat	agree	with	the	proposal,	compared	to	51%	of	those	who	live		

and	/	or	work	/	volunteer	 in	Llangollen	and	56%	of	visitors.	 	However,	almost	the	same	proportion	(42%)	of	
business	somewhat	or	strongly	disagree	with	the	proposal	for	14	free	1	hour	parking	places.	

	 Figure	 12.	What	 do	 different	 types	 of	 respondents	 think	 about	 the	 proposal	 to	 provide	 14	 free	 1-hour	
parking	 spaces	 in	Market	 Street	 car	 park	will	 help	make	 up	 for	 the	 loss	 of	 on-street	 parking	 on	 Castle	
Street?

36%

9%
5%

11%

32%

8%

51%

18%

4% 6%

15%

6%

56%

9%
3% 0%

19%

13%

STRONGLY AGREE SOMEWHAT AGREE NEITHER AGREE NOR 
DISAGREE

SOMEWHAT DISAGREE STRONGLY DISAGREE NO OPINION

Providing	14	free	1-hour	parking	spaces	in	Market	Street	car	
park	will	help	make	up	for	the	loss	of	on-street	parking	on	

Castle	Street?

Business Owners Live and/or Work/Volunteer in Lllangollen Visitors

4.6	 20mph	Speed	Limit
 As	shown	 in	figure	13,	62%	of	businesses	owners	somewhat	or	strongly	agree	that	the	proposal	 to	create	a	

20mph	speed	 limit	and	ramped	road	surface	at	Bridge	Street	 junction	will	make	Castle	Street	safer.	 	21%	of	
business	owners	strongly	disagree,	compared	to	14%	of	residents	and	9%	of	visitors.	

	 Figure	13.	What	do	different	types	of	respondents	think	about	the	proposal	to	introduce	a	20	mph	speed	
limit	and	‘ramped’	road	surface	at	the	Bridge	Street	junction	will	make	Castle	Street	safer?

46%

16%

4% 5%

21%

7%

52%

14%

9%
4%

14%

7%

41%

9%
6%

19%

9%

16%

STRONGLY AGREE SOMEWHAT AGREE NEITHER AGREE NOR 
DISAGREE

SOMEWHAT DISAGREE STRONGLY DISAGREE NO OPINION

Introducing	a	20	mph	speed	limit	and	‘ramped’	road	surface	at	
the	Bridge	Street	junction	will	make	Castle	Street	safer?

Business Owners Live and/or Work/Volunteer in Lllangollen Visitors
Page 65



Page 16

4.6	 A	More	Attractive	Place	for	Shoppers	and	Visitors
	 Figure	 14	 shows	 that	 an	 almost	 equal	 proportion	 of	 business	 owners	 strongly	 agree	 (36%)	 and	 strongly	

disagree	 (34%)	 with	 the	 statement	 that	 the	 proposed	 scheme	 will	 make	 Castle	 Street	 more	 attractive	 for	
shoppers	and	visitors.		

	 Figure	 14.	Will	 the	 proposed	 scheme	will	 make	 Castle	 Street	 a	more	 attractive	 place	 for	 shoppers	 and	
visitors?

36%

8%
6% 4%

34%

12%

45%

14%

9%
7%

18%

7%

53%

9%
3%

9%
13% 13%

STRONGLY AGREE SOMEWHAT AGREE NEITHER AGREE NOR 
DISAGREE

SOMEWHAT DISAGREE STRONGLY DISAGREE NO OPINION

The	proposed	scheme	will	make	Castle	Street	a	more	attractive	
place	for	shoppers	and	visitors?

Business Owners Live and/or Work/Volunteer in Lllangollen Visitors

4.7	 Will	People	Be	More	Likely	to	Walk	or	Cycle	Around	Town?	
 Visitors	are	the	group	who	think	the	proposals	will	 result	 in	them	being	more	 likely	 to	walk	or	cycle	around	

town.	 	39%	of	business	owners	strongly	disagree	 that	 the	proposed	scheme	will	 increase	 their	 likelihood	of	
walking	and	cycling	around	town.		

	 Figure	15.	Will	the	proposed	scheme	will	make	me	more	likely	to	walk	or	cycle	around	the	town?

28%

6%

13%

1%

39%

13%

35%

10%

16%

5%

25%

9%

48%

13%

3% 0%

19%
16%

STRONGLY AGREE SOMEWHAT AGREE NEITHER AGREE NOR 
DISAGREE

SOMEWHAT DISAGREE STRONGLY DISAGREE NO OPINION

The	proposed	scheme	will	make	me	more	likely	to	walk	or	cycle	
around	the	town?

Business Owners Live and/or Work/Volunteer in Lllangollen Visitors

Page 66



Page 17

5.0	 Support	for	the	Llangollen	2020	Proposals
	 As	shown	below,	40%	of	respondents	to	date	believe	‘the	scheme	is	generally	a	good	idea,	and	I	support	most/

all	of	the	proposed	changes.’		36%	believe	the	‘scheme	is	not	generally	a	good	idea’.

 “If not broken, why mend. Bad plan.”
Questionnaire	Respondent

 “As a resident in Llangollen I feel it has been obvious for some time that these changes have been 
necessary to improve the town centre for both residents and the increasing number of tourists.”

Questionnaire	Respondent

	 Figure	16.	Overall	Opinion	on	the	Proposals	

40%

24%

18%

18%

Overall	Opinion	on	the	Proposals

The scheme is generally a good idea,
and I support most/all of the
proposed changes

The scheme is generally a good idea,
but the proposed changes could be
improved/modified

The scheme is not generally a good
idea, but I support some of the
individual proposed changes

The scheme is not generally a good
idea, and I do not support any of the
proposals

 “You do not support the shops in the town.”  
Questionnaire	Response

 “Removing all parking on Castle Street severely restricts local pop and shop.”  
Questionnaire	Response

	 The	analysis	suggests	there	is	a	difference	in	perspective	between	business	owners	and	non	business	owners.		
91%	of	those	who	described	themselves	as	being	a	business	owner,	also	said	they	lived	in	Llangollen	or	nearby.		
Figure	11	shows	that	24%	of	business	owners	agree	with	the	statement	‘the	scheme	is	generally	a	good	idea,	
and	I	support	most/all	of	the	proposed	changes’	compared	to	43%	of	non	business	owners.	

	 Overall	 47%	of	 businesses	 describe	 themselves	 as	 disagreeing	with	 the	 scheme,	 compared	 to	 34%	of	 non-
business	owners.	The	concerns	of	business	owners	are	summarised	in	section	6.0	Emerging	Themes.

Page 67



Page 18

 Figure	 17:	 	 Overall	 Support	 for	 the	 Proposals	 Comparing	 the	 Response	 of	 Business	 Owners	 and	 Non	
Business	Owners	

23.53%

29.41%

20.00%

27.06%

43.01%

23.06%

17.36% 16.58%

THE SCHEME IS GENERALLY A GOOD 
IDEA, AND I SUPPORT MOST/ALL OF 

THE PROPOSED CHANGES

THE SCHEME IS GENERALLY A GOOD 
IDEA, BUT THE PROPOSED CHANGES 

COULD BE IMPROVED/MODIFIED

THE SCHEME IS NOT GENERALLY A 
GOOD IDEA, BUT I SUPPORT SOME OF 
THE INDIVIDUAL PROPOSED CHANGES

THE SCHEME IS NOT GENERALLY A 
GOOD IDEA, AND I DO NOT SUPPORT 

ANY OF THE PROPOSALS

Opinion	of	the	Scheme:	Business	Owners	compared	to	Non	
Business	Owners

Business Owners Non Business Owners

6.0	 Emerging	Themes	
	 Based	on	a	coding	and	analysis	of	the	qualitative	data	from	the	survey	and	engagement	process,	the	following	

themes	 have	 emerged	 as	 potential	 areas	 of	 concern	 for	 the	 community.	 It	 should	 be	 acknowledged	 that	
people	 who	 disagreed	with	 the	 scheme	were	more	 likely	 to	 leave	 feedback	 /	 respond	 to	 the	 open	 ended	
survey	questions.		

 Parking
 “The scheme does not address the main problem i.e. parking in the town especially for locals.”  

Questionnaire	Response

	 The	coding	of	the	qualitative	engagement	suggests	a	perception	that	the	Llangollen	2020	proposals	have	not	
addressed	the	parking	challenges	facing	Llangollen.		The	responses	suggest	a	belief	that	there	is	not	sufficient	
parking	in	the	town	to	meet	the	needs	of	residents	and	visitors.			

	 “Lack of parking is stopping many visitors - a park and ride scheme needs to be considered for weekends and 
holidays (stops cars even entering the town).”

Questionnaire	Response

 “I am disabled and cannot walk from the car park to get my meat and bread in Castle Street.”
Questionnaire	Response

	 Respondents	raise	concerns	about	parking	in	nearby	streets	and	roads,	impacting	on	local	residents.		There	is	
a	perception	that	there	needs	to	be	a	parking	strategy	that	considers	the	needs	of	local	people	(ideas	such	as	
permits	and	free	parking	for	local	people	are	referenced)	as	well	as	businesses	and	visitors.		From	a	business	

Page 68



Page 19

perspective	there	is	concern	that	the	removal	of	on	street	parking	will	end “the local pop and shop” despite	
the	provision	of	 free	parking	places	elsewhere	 in	the	town.	 	Proposals	do	 include	2Nº	disabled	bays	near	to	
Castle	Street		but	there	is	also	concern	about	the	impact	on	disabled	visitors.		

 “All parking restrictions must be enforced, otherwise this will be a total waste of money. DCC must commit to 
Llangollen, sufficient Parking Warden resource to enforce the parking restrictions, on a daily basis.”

Questionnaire	Response

	 As	 shown	 67%	 of	 respondents	 strongly	 or	 somewhat	 agree	 with	 the	 proposal	 to	 provide	 14	 free	 1	 hour	
parking	 spaces,	 compared	 to	 28%	who	 somewhat	 or	 strongly	 disagree.	However,	 there	 is	 concern	 that	 this	
is	potentially	open	for	abuse;	respondents	would	like	more	information	on	how	this	will	work	and	how	the	1	
hour	period	will	be	enforced.		

  
 HGVs	and	Large	Vehicles
  “The proposed 6 metre road width of Castle Street is insufficient for two lorries to pass each other. I think it 

should be 6.3 to 6.5 metres to prevent lorries from mounting kerbs (I am a retired lorry driver).”
Questionnaire	Response

 “Making pavements wider means roads are narrower, therefore buses, lorries and tractors have difficulty 
passing each other.”

Questionnaire	Response

 “The proposed narrowing of the Abbey Road/Castle Street junction and the Castle Street/Bridge Street 
junction will make both junctions too narrow and cause safety problems.”

Verbal	feedback	from	members	of	local	community

 “Road narrowings will cause more congestion and increase vehicle fumes.”
Verbal	feedback	from	members	of	local	community

	 Analysis	of	the	qualitative	feedback	suggests	there	is	concern	that	the	proposals	will	cause	issues	by	reducing	
space	and	preventing	two	 large	vehicles	 from	being	able	 to	safely	pass	each	other.	 	There	was	also	concern	
about	access	for	emergency	vehicles.		

 “It does not address the issue of movement of heavy through traffic in Castle Street. There is an urgent need 
to review access with regard to a bypass / new bridge to the East of the Town.”

 Questionnaire	Response

 “One way traffic on Market Street is increasing congestion problems at East Street/Parade Street 90 degree 
corner”.

Verbal	feedback	from	members	of	local	community

 “Inset the proposed Castle Street loading bays so they extend a shorter distance into the road”. 
Email	feedback	from	local	resident

 
	 In	addition	among	some	respondents	there	is	a	preference	for	limiting	/	preventing	access	by	HGV’s,	coaches	

and	other	large	vehicles	to	Castle	Street	and	the	wider	town	centre.	
 

Page 69



Page 20

 Safety	
 “The existing layout particularly on Castle Street is not a place I want to spend time with my family. In fact as 

a town centre resident I actively avoid it due to difficulty in moving around with children safely.”
Questionnaire	Response

 “The narrowing of Castle Street will pose a real danger to pedestrians.”
Questionnaire	Response

 
 While	some	respondents	believe	the	project	area	is	unsafe	and	will	become	safer	as	a	result	of	the	proposals,	

others	believe	the	Llangollen	2020	approach	will	have	a	negative	effect	on	the	town	 in	terms	of	pedestrian,	
cyclists	 and	 driver	 safety.	 	 Narrower	 roads,	 changes	 to	 one	way	 systems	 and	 poor	 visibility	were	 particular	
areas	of	concerns.		

 “A further controlled crossing from the A5 to Castle Street would be beneficial as the only other controlled 
crossing were a fair distance away.”

 Email	submission	from	Member	of	Visual	Impaired	Group

	 There	is	also	evidence	that	the	community	feel	a	zebra	crossing	would	be	more	likely	to	improve	safety	than	
the	proposals	outlined.				

 
 	Impact	on	Businesses 
 “I work in Solitaire and have noticed a huge difference since the parking was taken away. Locals no longer 

pop for a couple of bits in town, affecting many of the businesses.”
 Questionnaire	Response
 
 “I believe it will have a detrimental effect on local businesses. This has been seen in other towns where on 

street parking has been removed and speaking to business owners in Llangollen this has already been seen 
with a reduction of customers coming into town.” 

Questionnaire	Response

 As	shown	 in	Figure	11	there	 is	a	difference	 in	perspective	on	the	quality	of	 the	proposals	between	business	
and	non	business	owners.		The	qualitative	data	suggests	concern	regarding	the	potential	impact	on	businesses,	
particularly	in	terms	of	the	loss	of	on	street	parking	and	that	the	free	1	hour	parking	will	not	mitigate	for	this.	
There	is	a	belief	that	‘pop	and	shop’	market	will	disappear	as	a	result	of	the	planned	proposals.		

 “Main concern is that she considered that the loading bays needed to be general loading bays as many 
business owners including herself use their own cars to unload goods.”

Notes	from	Interview	with	Local	Business	Owner

 “Loading bays need to be usable by private cars and not just limited to goods vehicles as many business 
owners use their own vehicles.”

Notes	from	Interview	with	Local	Business	Owner

 “Proposed loading bay on Bridge Street should be located further in to Bridge Street.” 
Verbal	feedback	from	members	of	local	community

	 During		discussions	with	local	business	owners	a	number	of	them	raised	concerns	about	the	type	and	location	
of	the	proposed	loading	bays.	They	explained	that	a	proportion	of	them	use	their	own	vehicles	to	deliver	stock	
to	their	business,	meaning	a	commercial	loading	bay	would	not	be	suitable	for	them.		In	addition	the	proposed	
locations	where	issues	for	concern,	whilst	some	felt	it	would	be	too	far	away	to	serve	there	business	others	
were	concerned	that	a	loading	bay	out	front	would	hide	their	frontage.	As	with	parking	there	was	concern	
about	who	would	enforce	the	loading	bays	so	they	are	not	used	for	parking.	

Page 70



Page 21

 “The loss of pop and shop parking in the main street has been devastating for some Castle Street businesses 
and has also increased the amount of illegal parking in Market St.”

Questionnaire	Response

 “No parking on Castle Street has killed the local / passing trade. Making harder to earn a living.” 
Questionnaire	Response

 “Consider making loading bays “mixed use” i.e. loading for part of day, pop and shop parking for part of day.” 
Verbal	feedback	from	members	of	local	community

 “Need to create more parking on the outskirts of the town and more on-street parking on proposed one way 
section of Market Street.” 

Verbal	feedback	from	members	of	local	community

 There	 was	 a	 perception	 that	 planters	 and	 other	 interventions,	 that	 have	 been	 introduced	 to	 the	 town	 to	
enable	social	distancing	and	other	COVID-19	protocols,	are	already	having	a	negative	impact	on	businesses	and	
highlighting	the	issues	that	will	result	from	the	Llangollen	2020	proposals.		

 “Will businesses be compensated for disaster already in place and when works start?!”
Questionnaire	Response

 “Construction window needs to be limited to complete by May bank holiday 2022 otherwise summer volumes 
chaos.”

Questionnaire	Response
 
 “He was particularly concerned about the impact of constructing the permanent scheme.”
 Notes	from	Interview	with	Local	Business	Owner

 Businesses	were	also	concerned	about	the	timing	and	 impact	of	 the	construction	of	the	scheme	and	how	it	
would	affect	their	business.		Raising	issues	such	as	the	timing	of	the	work,	there	was	a	preference	for	avoiding	
the	tourist	season,	and	how	long	it	would	take	to	be	completed.	

 People	with	Additional	Needs 
 Among	those	members	of	the	VI	(Vision	Impaired)	support	group	who	submitted	feedback	about	the	proposals	

there	was	a	belief	that	Castle	Street	is	“an	absolute	fiasco”	and	that	navigating	the	area	means	“taking	your	life	
in	your	hands	when	crossing	roads.”		Among	this	group	there	was	a	clear	preference	for	controlled	crossings	
such	as	zebra	crossing.		Improvements	to	pavements	would	address	issues	such	as	uneven	pavements	making	
it	easier	to	move	around	the	town.		Removal	of	Street	parking	would	also	make	it	easier	for	those	with	visual	
impairment	issues	to	cross	the	road	safely.		

 “I need parking close to shops ie.. Castle Street as my wife is disabled and has to walk with crutches she has a 
mobility scooter but is excluded because of the planters and dangerous state of our town during lockdown.”

Questionnaire	Response

  “I have a blue badge and I used to park in Castle Street to do my shopping but now I drive around Oak Street, 
Bridge Street etc to try and park. Move often than not after 3 circuits I go home without shopping.”

Questionnaire	Response

 “Would love more consideration towards disabled coming into town. I am a blue badge holder for my wife to 
have access to shops i.e. butchers, green grocer.”

 Questionnaire	Response
 Whilst	some	felt	that	wider	pavements	would	benefit	people	with	disabilities	and	others,	for	example	parents	

with	prams	and	pushchair,	 there	were	 those	who	believe	 that	 the	parking	would	be	 in	 the	wrong	place	 for	
people	with	accessibility	issues	and	therefore	couldn’t	walk	from	the	car	park.	The	proposals	do	include	2Nº	
disabled	bays	near	to	Castle	Street	but	this	was	not	specifically	referenced	in	the	questionnaire.

Page 71



Page 22

 
 Look	and	Feel	of	the	Town	
 “As Llangollen is a very popular tourist town in Denbighshire I truly believe that it should be made attractive 

and suitable for people to come here for visits, holidays etc.”
Questionnaire	Response

 A	significant	number	of	respondents	felt	the	proposals	will	help	improve	the	look	and	feel	of	the	town,	which	is	
described	as	being	“scruffy”	and	“untidy.”	It	is	also	felt	that	the	delivery	of	the	project	has	the	potential	to	raise	
the	standard	of	the	town	and	its	appearance,	improving	the	area	for	residents	and	visitors.	

 “The idea of extending the pavements only allows businesses and cafés to extend onto the pavement. 
Llangollen is not conducive to outdoor cafe culture as the main fare is low grade kebab and pie and chips.”

Questionnaire	Response

 “So wrong to allow tables and seats and other street furniture - it does not make social distancing easy. 
Pavements are for walking not for drinking beer.”

Questionnaire	Response

	 However,	there	is	concern	about	levels	of “street clutter”	and	that	“the proposed attempt to make more space 
for pedestrians on the pavement is negated / contradicted by the large number of advertising A boards that 
shops put outside on the pavement plus large litter bins. If the A boards and bins were removed the pavement 
needn’t be widened!”   

 	Residents	v	Tourists 
 “Llangollen is a busy town and these proposals do not benefit any business owners on Castle Street and is only 

aimed at tourists / day trippers. Businesses need to survive 12 months of the year and rely on locals to park 
outside.”

Questionnaire	Response

 “Enough is enough. I love the town centre and quality of life has nose dived, the residents of this town are 
never considered. It is all about the tourists.”

Questionnaire	Response

 Analysis	of	the	open	ended	questionnaire	responses	and	other	submitted	feedback	suggests	a	perception	that	
the	proposals	 have	been	developed	with	 a	 focus	on	meeting	 the	needs	of	 tourist	 rather	 than	 local	 people.		
That	the	proposed	scheme	does	not	address	local,	community	issues	such	as	“residents	themselves	who	are	
paying	thousands	of	pounds	for	their	street	being	used	as	a	free	car	parking	facility	and	having	to	clean	up	the	
rubbish	that	is	left	behind”	(questionnaire	responses).		

	 There	is	a	desire	to	see	residents	facing	solutions	for	example	“consideration	also	needs	to	be	given	to	specific	
parking	 for	 residents	 who	 live	 in	 the	 town	 centre	 as	 reducing	 parking	 provision	 pushes	 even	 more	 cars	
on	 to	 residential	 streets”	 and	 “love	 the	 idea	of	 free	parking	but	 suggest	 it	 is	 for	 locals	only”	 (questionnaire	
responses).	 	 	 In	addition	there	 is	some	support	for	schemes	such	as	park	and	ride	and	that	“tourists	visiting	
Llangollen	should	be	encouraged	to	park	outside	the	town	centre	and	not	drive	around	the	town	looking	for	
parking	spaces	nor	park	irresponsibly	and	illicitly”	(questionnaire	response).	

 
 The	Impact	of	COVID-19
 It	 is	 important	to	acknowledge	that	the	feasibility	work	and	prior	community	engagement	took	place	before	

the	COVID-19	pandemic.		That,	in	the	interim	period	changes	have	taken	place	in	Llangollen,	to	support	social	
distancing	 and	 other	 COVID-19	 protocols,	 and	 that	 this	may	 have	 effected	 some	 people’s	 views	 about	 the	
permanent	scheme.		

Page 72



Page 23

 “I am driving around this town very regularly. I am a local driving and advanced driver I have to navigate 
pupils up and down Castle Street many, many times a day. These proposals are ridiculous, I now have 
to be ready to steer my pupils to avoid them catching the side mirror on the planters as a large vehicle is 
approaching. To make the road even more narrow will be disastrous.”

Questionnaire	Response

 “Current Covid Active Travel scheme has had a huge impact on some businesses and has made some of them 
unsustainable. The loss of limited waiting parking “pop and shop” parking is a major issue.”

	 Notes	from	Interview	with	Local	Business	Owner

 “Leave our town as it is!!! Even the changes you have made already (May / June) have caused great distress. 
The town may be very crowded on some days most of the year, especially October - May is almost deserted.”

Questionnaire	Response

 “I have not used a Castle Street business since the current restrictions have been in place. The idea of looking 
for a parking space in the car park when all I want is to drop a cheque into the bank or buy a pint of milk in 
the Spar is ridiculous. The previous system was not perfect but it worked. Traffic moves much faster now than 
it did before which is a bad thing. I fear that we will lose many of the businesses from the street when it is 
easier and quicker to use Aldi and Home Bargains.”

Questionnaire	Response

	 For	 example,	 as	 previously	 discussed,	 existing	 interventions	 such	 as	 the	 planters	 are	 seen	 as	 evidence	 that	
proposals	around	widening	pavements	will	not	work,	that	local	businesses	are	already	being	impacted	by	the	
changes,	citing	the	loss	of	the	“pop	and	shop”	audience	and	local	people	taking	their	trade	to	Aldi	and	other	
towns.			

 “I totally do not understand of see any evidence come forward to the reason for closing Short Street, other 
than for local businesses to use.”

 Letter	from	Member	of	the	Public

 “Closing off Short Street again without asking people’s thoughts on this is taking a liberty.”
Questionnaire	Response

	 A	 number	 of	 people	 also	mentioned	 the	 closure	 of	 Short	 Street,	 expressing	 frustration	 at	 the	 closure	 and	
suggesting	that	there	has	been	limited	engagement	and	explanation	as	to	why	it	has	been	closed.		

 A	Missed	Opportunity	To	Do	More
 “I think that the scheme, whilst of benefit to the town overall has missed opportunity to address many of the 

issues the 2020 group stated an interest in resolving.”
Questionnaire	Response

 	Within	the	qualitative	engagement	there	is	evidence	that	the	community	would	like	to	see	a	wider	reaching	
approach,	issues	that	respondents	felt	the	scheme	could	and	should	address	included:

• Bringing	trees	and	plants	into	Llangollen,	greening	the	town.	There	are	references	to	the	number	of	
trees	being	reduced	for	the	original	plans	and	concern	about	the	potential	removal	of	the	tree	near	
the	Town	Hall.	

• A	strategy	for	the	look	and	feel	of	the	wider	town	including	public	realm	works	and	street	furniture.	

• Supporting	the	active	travel	agenda	including	consideration	of	public	transport.		

• Cycle	lanes	and	infrastructure	such	as	places	to	park	bikes.	

• Addressing	 climate	 change	 and	 contributing	 to	 the	 carbon	 neutral	 agenda,	 for	 example	 electrical	
vehicle	charging	points.	

• Addressing	pollution	and	creating	healthy	streets.	
Page 73



Page 24

The	Engagement	Process
 “Who authorised this? Feel lack of communication with the residents of Llangollen has been absolutely 

disgraceful.”
Questionnaire	Response

 “The whole process has the feeling of a self appointed group (2020), who regardless of the public, are trying 
to impose their view, withholding information, being indifferent to genuine locals views.”

Questionnaire	Response

 “When you have a County Council Consultation, Town Councillors should not be allowed to be loitering around 
the process making people feel intimidated by their presence.”

 Email	from	a	member	of	the	Public	
 
 It	 is	 important	to	acknowledge	that	12%	of	respondents	to	the	questionnaire	expressed	concerns	about	the	

engagement	process	and	 in	particular	the	role	and	decision	making	processes	of	the	Llangollen	2020	group.	
This	may	in	part	be	attributed	to	the	amount	of	time	between	initial	engagement	in	2018	and	this	next	phase	
of	discussion	with	local	people.		

7.0 Conclusion 
	 The	survey	responses	suggest	that	64%	of	respondents	think	that	the	scheme	is	generally	a	good	idea.	This	is	

made	up	of	40%	of	respondents	who	think	it	should	be	implemented	as	advertised,	and	24%	of	respondents	
who	think	it	is	a	good	idea	but	that	it	could	be	improved/modified.	

	 It	 is	 important	 to	 remember	 that	 community	 engagement	 is	 not	 a	 vote	 but	 a	 process	 to	 understand	
the	 community’s	 concerns	 and	 frustrations	 about	 the	 proposed	 scheme.	 The	 following	 next	 steps	 are	
recommended:

• Based	on	the	feedback	received,	consider	making	modifications	to	the	proposed	scheme.

• Provide	an	explanation	of	what	suggested	modifications	will	or	won’t	be	incorporated	into	the	final	
scheme,	 together	 with	 an	 explanation	 of	 the	 associated	 reasons	 in	 each	 case,	 including	 evidence	
where	possible.

• Explain	 that	 the	 subsequent	 phases	 of	 work	 include	 a	 parking	 strategy	 and	 what	 work	 that	 will	
involve.

• Communicate	how	long	the	Covid	Active	Travel	interventions	are	likely	to	be	in	place.

• Illustrate	how	the	findings	of	this	engagement	process	will	shape	the	delivery	of	the	scheme.

• Should	the	scheme	go	ahead,	work	closely	with	businesses	to	ensure	they’re	kept	regularly	informed	
about	construction	work	and	that	contractors	liaise	closely	with	businesses	in	terms	of	deliveries	and	
the	potential	for	impact	on	their	operation.	

Page 74



Leader and Cabinet. 

 

In 2015 the community of Llangollen, worried about traffic congestion and parking problems 

in the town, Crowdfunded Ben Hamilton Bailie (a shared space expert) to make a study of 

and come up with possible solutions to the problems. 

I was at that time a member of Llangollen TC and along with officers from DCC and over 

100 townsfolk attended an evening meeting at the Town Hall to listen to his initial thoughts. 

Community Cafes, feasibility studies by Arcadis and community engagement by Caru 

Llangollen all resulted in the belief that traffic congestion and parking were topics high on 

people ‘s minds and needed addressing. 

These issues have been a problem in Llangollen since the 1960’s as evidenced by LTC 

archived records. 

 

What the Llangollen 2020 scheme will achieve, is to make the town centre safer for 

pedestrians by providing wider pavements and raised crossing points across the busiest 

junctions. Designated loading bays will aid businesses,( who do not thrive on local trade,) we 

are a tourist town and as such depend on tourism for much of our employment. 

Traffic congestion through the town will be eased and better signage will aid parking 

problems. 

 

The very high quality public realm improvements will make the town centre even more 

attractive to residents and visitors alike. 

 

This scheme will help make Llangollen Town Centre match its beautiful surroundings. 

It can also help regenerate those areas not on Castle St. 

Llangollen is spoken of as being the jewel in Denbighshire’s crown, this scheme will make it 

sparkle even more. 

People will no longer be able to moan that no money ever comes over the Horseshoe Pass! 

 

I fully support the Llangollen 2020 scheme and would urge you to do the same. 

 

Regards  

 

Mel  

 

T Melvyn Mile  

Llangollen Ward, Denbighshire CC 

Cynghorwr Sir Ddinbych dros Llangollen  

 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Llangollen 2020 

I would like to express my firm support for the Llangollen 2020 scheme, as proposed in the 

report.  

Traffic and parking has been identified as a major concern by the community for many years, 

featuring in minutes of the town council as far back as the 1960s. Castle Street has the second 

largest footfall in Denbighshire during August and this is the first time that a genuine attempt 

has been proposed to begin to solve these issues. 

In 2017 when Melvyn Mile and I were elected we both identified these issues as a genuine 

concern in our election campaign literature and wanted to make a serious attempt to make 

things better, which resulted in the Llangollen 2020 working group being formed in late 

2017.  

Keeping the community involved has always been our priority and there have been three 

major consultations, each one using a variety of ways to engage, including online and paper 

surveys, public meetings, letter drops, displays and visits to community and business groups.  

The journey has not been easy because whatever solution is suggested will have a perceived 

negative impact on someone. However, objectives had a clear focus on active travel as the 

need to make the town safer and much more welcoming for all ages and abilities was 

essential. This final plan addresses this priority and has also been amended as a result of 

concerns raised during the consultations. 

This plan will be a brilliant start to solving Llangollen's impossible conundrum, even better 

because the money will largely come from Welsh Government.  

The Llangollen 2020 group also developed a plan to make parking for residents, visitors and 

businesses work better. It is essential that this next stage continues at pace to continue the 

work on the two major priorities that will make Llangollen better for all. 

Graham Timms 

County Councillor for Llangollen 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Neuadd Y Dref, Llangollen, Sir Ddinbych LL20 8PW Town Hall, Llangollen, Denbighshire LL20 8PW. 
Ffôn 01978 861345 Tel: 01978 861345. 

townclerk@llangollentowncouncil.gov.uk 
 

   

 

Cyngor Tref Llangollen Town Council 
 

 
21 July 2021. 

 
 
Mr M. Jones, 
Parking and Road Safety Manager, 
Planning & Public Protection Services, 
Denbighshire County Cocuncil, 
Ruthin, 
Denbighshire. 
 
Dear Mr Jones,  

Llangollen 2020 Castle Street Scheme. 
 
Members considered the invitation to comment on the proposed scheme following the 
presentation to the Town Council at the June meeting. 
 
Members felt that the proposals were acceptable and support the County Council’s scheme 
for the improvement of Castle Street. 
 
It was thought that the process of consultation, throughout all stages of this scheme, had 
allowed stakeholders adequate time to input into the process. 
 
Yours faithfully. 
 

 
Gareth Thomas, BSc (Hons), PGDip TP, PGDip Tour, CMS, CiLCA, PSLCC. 
Clerc y Dref a'r Swyddog Ariannol Cyfrifol. 
 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix H 

 

Project funding sources 

 

Funding Source Amount (£) 

DCC Highways Maintenance contribution 500k 
 

DCC County Capital £282k 

WG Active Travel Fund Grant £450k 

WG Local Transport Fund Grant £270k 

WG Regen Place-making grant £250k 

Total £1,752k 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to Cabinet 

Date of meeting 27th July 2021 

Lead Member / Officer Julian Thompson Hill 

Report author Steve Gadd, Head of Finance and Property 

Title Finance Report (June 2021/22) 

1. What is the report about? 

The report gives details of the council’s revenue budget and savings as agreed for 

2021/22. The report also provides a summary update of the Capital Plan as well as the 

Housing Revenue Account and Housing Capital Plan. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

The purpose of the report is to provide an update on the council’s current financial position 

and confirm the agreed service budgets for 2021/22.  

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1  Members note the budgets set for 2021/22 and progress against the agreed strategy. 

4. Report details 

The report provides a summary of the council’s revenue budget for 2021/22 detailed in 

Appendix 1. The council’s net revenue budget is £216.818m (£208.302m in 20/21).  The 

position on service and corporate budgets is a forecast overspend of £0.748m (£0.708m 

overspend last month). Narrative around the current risks and assumptions underlying this 

assessment are outlined in Section 6. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 6



 
 

The 2021/22 budget required service savings and efficiencies of £4.448m to be identified 

and agreed as detailed below: 

 Fees and Charges inflated in line with agreed Fees and Charges policy (£0.462m).  

 Operational efficiencies (£690k) mostly identified by services throughout the year 

and within Head Service delegated responsibility in consultation with Lead 

Members.  

 Savings of £0.781m have also been identified which change service provision in 

some way and which were shared in detail with Cabinet and Council in the 

December briefings.  

 1% (£0.733m) Schools efficiency target from Schools Delegated Budgets.  

 

The operational savings and fees and charges increases are assumed to have been 

achieved and the schools’ savings are delegated to the governing bodies to monitor and 

deliver.  

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 

Priorities? 

Effective management of the council’s revenue and capital budgets and delivery of the 

agreed budget strategy underpins activity in all areas, including corporate priorities. 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

Significant service narratives explaining variances and risks are detailed in Appendix 2, 

however the following should also be noted:  

6.1  Impact of Corona Virus - The strategy of working in partnership with Welsh 

Government helped secure over £23m direct financial help last year. Further recent 

funding announcements should ensure that Covid pressures for the first six months of 

2021/22 are covered. It has been confirmed that the system of monthly expenditure claims 

and quarterly income loss claims will continue. So far two expenditure claims for April and 

May have been submitted amounting to £581k.  

6.2  Corporate Budgets – Although currently projected to break even the following risks 

are difficult to quantify at this early stage of the year: 

Page 84



 
 

 Ongoing impact of Covid on the Council Tax Yield 

 Ongoing impact on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

 Pay settlements for 2021/22  

These will be monitored closely over the coming months.  

6.3  Schools - The budget agreed by Council for 2021/22 included a total net additional 

investment (excluding increases in Welsh Government grants) in schools delegated 

budgets of just over £2.5m. The latest projection for school balances to be carried forward 

into 2022/23 is a net credit balance of £3.487m, which represents a decrease of £2.183m 

on the balances brought forward into 2021/22 of £5.670m. There is a small underspend of 

£124k on non-delegated budgets. The movement is expected as highlighted last month 

and in the Final Outturn Report, as the movement last year largely related to the receipt of 

one-off funding and, in particular, a number of large grants that were received at the end of 

March. The grants are now projected to be spent this financial year on the catch-up and 

Covid recovery programme in schools.                                                                                

6.4  The Housing Revenue Account (HRA).  The latest revenue position assumes a 

decrease in balances at year end of £1.168m, which is £0.515m more than the £653k at 

the time the budget was approved. The movement relates to a planned increase in 

revenue contribution to the Capital budget. HRA balances are therefore forecast to be 

£1.588m at the end of the year. The Capital budget of £20.7m is largely allocated between 

planned improvements to existing housing stock (£6.7m) and new build developments and 

acquisitions (£14m).  

6.5  Treasury Management – At the end of June, the council’s borrowing totalled 

£233.7m at an average rate of 3.96%. Investment balances were £20.1m at an average 

rate of 0.01%. 

6.6  A summary of the council’s Capital Plan is enclosed as Appendix 3. The approved 

capital plan is £52.85m with expenditure to date of £4.79m. Appendix 4 provides an 

update on the major projects included in the overall Capital Plan.  

Page 85



 
 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 

Assessment?  

A Well-being Impact Assessments for the Council Tax rise was presented to Council on 26 

January. 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 

and others? 

In addition to regular reports to the Corporate Governance Committee, the budget process 

has been considered by SLT, Cabinet Briefing, Group Leaders and Council Briefing 

meetings. The School Budget Forum have been included in the proposals through-out the 

year. Trade Unions have been consulted through Local Joint Consultative Committee. The 

Covid pandemic did impact on the level of consultation and engagement with the public, 

however plans are in place to engage early with all stakeholders during the budget 

process for 2022/23. 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

It is welcome that we enter this financial year in a lot better position than we feared thanks 

to the partnership approach of working with Welsh Government and it should be 

remembered that DCC received over £23m from WG for direct financial help for the 

Council. It is hoped the additional help identified for the first 6 months of 2021/22 will 

ensure that the Council can start planning positively for the future. Early monitoring is 

showing pressures in the usual areas of Homelessness and Childrens’ Services. 

Significant investment has gone into these areas in recent years and it is expected that 

that need will continue. Initial pressures have already been included in the Medium Term 

Financial Plan and these will be kept under review. 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 

reduce them? 

This remains a challenging financial period and there is still uncertainty around the 

ongoing impact of Covid 19, Brexit and the financial strategy of the UK government in 

dealing with the long term financial impact on the public finances of the Covid response. 

Although the financial outlook looks uncertain, our finances are in a healthy position and a 

Page 86



 
 

robust 3/5 year budget process has recently been approved by SLT, CET, Cabinet and 

scrutinised by the Governance and Audit Committee. 

11. Power to make the decision 

Local authorities are required under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs.  

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Net Budget Variance

Jun-21 2020/21 Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Net Previous 
Report

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

Communities and Customers 3,325 4,515 -1,254 3,261 5,297 -2,036 3,261 782 -782 0 0.00% 0
Education and Children's Service 17,145 32,970 -15,182 17,788 24,448 -6,134 18,314 -8,522 9,048 526 2.96% 708
Business Improvement and Modernisation 4,309 5,328 -1,122 4,206 5,673 -1,551 4,122 345 -429 -84 -2.00% 0
Legal, HR and Democratic Services 2,384 3,988 -1,622 2,366 3,982 -1,642 2,340 -6 -20 -26 -1.10% 0
Finance and Property 4,664 8,781 -4,264 4,517 8,694 -4,177 4,517 -87 87 0 0.00% 0
Highways and Environmental Services 17,074 31,746 -14,849 16,897 27,101 -9,890 17,211 -4,645 4,959 314 1.86% 0
Planning and Public Protection 9,748 16,815 -7,211 9,604 17,506 -7,902 9,604 691 -691 0 0.00% 0
Community Support Services 38,118 57,262 -17,399 39,863 54,067 -14,182 39,885 -3,195 3,217 22 0.06% 0
Leisure - Retained Budgets 3,346 3,273 0 3,273 3,269 0 3,269 -4 0 -4 -0.12% 0
Total Services 100,113 164,678 -62,903 101,775 150,037 -47,514 102,523 -14,641 15,389 748 0.73% 0

Corporate 16,231 48,147 -29,281 18,866 48,147 -29,281 18,866 0 0 0 0.00% 0
Precepts & Levies 4,899 5,060 0 5,060 5,060 0 5,060 0 0 0 0.00% 0
Capital Financing 13,724 15,176 0 15,176 15,176 0 15,176 0 0 0 0.00% 0
Total Corporate 34,854 68,383 -29,281 39,102 68,383 -29,281 39,102 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Council Services & Corporate Budget 134,967 233,061 -92,184 140,877 218,420 -76,795 141,625 -14,641 15,389 748 0.53% 0

Schools & Non-delegated School Budgets 73,335 85,117 -9,176 75,941 87,011 -9,010 78,001 1,894 166 2,060 2.71% 0

Total Council Budget 208,302 318,178 -101,360 216,818 305,431 -85,805 219,626 -12,747 15,555 2,808 1.30% 0

Housing Revenue Account 213 17,606 -16,953 653 18,121 -16,953 1,168 515 0 515 0

Budget 2021/22 Projected Outturn

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 - Service Variance Narrative

Service

Variance 
Last 

Month
£000

Variance 
This 

Month
£000

Change
£000

Description

Communities and Customers 0 0 0 No Variances to report at this stage.

Education and Children's Service 708 526 -182
This Pressure all relates to high cost residential and Independent Fostering placements.   The reduction from last month relates to 
increased income towards placements from Health of £50K and a reduced cost for one of the existing placements going forward of 
£150K. Minor variances account for the remaining change.

Business Improvement and Modernisation 0 -84 -84
Underspend due to a vacancy savings. It is anticipated that the underspend will be placed in the new reserve set up to help fund 
future improvements to the heritage offer at Ruthin Gaol.

Legal, HR and Democratic Services 0 -26 -26
Th eunderspend relates the net effect of the detailed monitoring (eg vacancies). There are no siginficat areas of pressures or 
underspends to report at this stage.

Finance and Property 0 0 0
There are ongoing pressures within this service relating to the ongoing reduction in the Housing Benefit Administration Grant - 
currently we are hoping to identify one-off funding to once again mitigate this pressure.

Highways, Facilities and Environmental 
Services

0 314 314
The reported overspend relates to ongoing pressures in Waste Service relating to increases in costs and decreases in income 
received for recyclable waste. The figure reported assumes that we will continue to be able to claim for Covid related costs. 

Planning and Public Protection 0 0 0
Although currently showing a break even position theer are risks in the service concerning School Transport and Heritage. The 
position with school transport will not be clear until the contracts for September school re-opening are finalised. The insurance 
claim with regard tothe flooding at Ruthin Gaol is ongoing and should be regarded as a risk until that is finalised.

Community Support Services 0 22 22
Although an additional pressure of £2.4m was included in the budget for 2021/22 Homelessness in particular remains an area of 
pressure. There is an SLT working group which is tasked with identifying and providing in-house provision which will improve the 
level of service and reduce costs in the future. A report detailing this work was presented to Cabinet Briefing on 10th May. 

Leisure - ADM 0 -4 -4 The movement relates to minor variances.

Corporate & Miscellaneous 0 0 0 See body of report for details

Precepts & Levies 0 0 0 There are no risks in this area

Capital Financing 0 0 0
The position on capital financing is very much related to progress on capital projects and variances do not crystallise until the final 
outturn is known. Any spare capacity this year is likely to be required to fulfill the investment target in Highways agreed by Council.

Council Services & Corporate Budget 708 748 40

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Denbighshire County Council  - Capital Plan 2021/22 - 2024/25 APPENDIX  3
Position to end June 2021

2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

ORIGINAL LATEST LATEST LATEST LATEST

ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Capital Expenditure
Total Estimated Payments  - Other 24,699 30,617 3,339 350

Total Estimated Payments - Major Projects:

Housing Improvement Grants 1,200 1,575
Rhyl, New 3-16 Catholic  School 366 391
Ysgol Llanfair, New School 75
Ysgol Carreg Emlyn, New School 50
Highways Maintenance 2,960 4,622
East Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme 8,150 7,250 5,575
Rhyl Waterfront and Waterpark 24
Rhyl Queens Market Redevelopment 3,128 3,145 2,630 121
Waste Service Remodelling 13,472 4,603 8,928

Contingency 500 500 500 500 500
Total 54,475 52,852 20,972 971 500

Capital Financing
External Funding 28,332 30,702 7,776 6,036 6,036
Receipts and Reserves 6,610 11,316 4,879 121
Prudential Borrowing  19,533 10,834 13,853 350

Unallocated Funding 0 0 (5,536) (5,536) (5,536)

Total Capital Financing 54,475 52,852 20,972 971 500

Note: 2021-22 Original Estimate is the position as approved by Council on 23rd February 2021

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Appendix 4 - Major Capital Projects Update – June 2021 

 

21st Century Schools Programme – Ysgol Llanfair 

Total Budget £4.964m  
Expenditure to date £4.945m 
Estimated remaining spend in 21/22 £0.019m 
Future Years estimated spend £0.000m 
Funding WG £0.180m; DCC £4.784m 
Narrative: 
 
This scheme is within the Band A proposals for 21st Century Schools Programme. The 
project has provided a new school building on a new site in Llanfair DC. 

The swap in land whereby the Church in Wales St. Asaph Diocese will receive the footprint of 
the land at the new school site and the Council will receive ownership of the land in Diocese 
ownership at the former school site is still currently progressing. Agreement of the exchange 
has now been agreed and the completion and exchange of sites will be reached shortly 
subject to the valuation report being agreed by both parties. 

Once the former site is in the Council’s possession, it will be declared surplus by Education 
and discussions on the future use for the former school site will commence. 

 

 

 

  

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22 £0.075m 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



 
 

21st Century Schools Programme – Glasdir 

Total Budget £11.714m 

Expenditure to date £11.541m 

Estimated remaining spend in 21/22 £0.173m 

Future Years estimated spend £0.000m 

Funding DCC £3.066m; WG £8.648m 

Narrative 

This project has delivered a new shared school building site for Rhos Street School and 
Ysgol Penbarras at Glasdir, Ruthin which has been used by the schools since April 2018. 
The final account has now been settled. 

The work to create an additional school yard for Rhos Street School is started on the 21st of 
June with completion due before the start of the autumn school term. Work onsite has 
progressed well and has benefitted from favourable weather conditions. As a result it 
remains on track to be completed on time.  

The costs of the works, will be less than the pre tender estimate of £200k, and will be 
absorbed from the overall allocation to the Ruthin projects in 2016 as part of Denbighshire’s 
contribution to the 21st Century Schools Programme. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22 £0.174m 

Page 96



 
 

21st Century Schools Programme – Rhyl, Christ the Word School 

Total Budget £23.440m  

Expenditure to date £23.056m 

Estimated remaining spend in 21/22 £ 0.384m 

Future Years estimated spend £ 0.000m 

Funding WG £5.541m; DCC £17.899m 

Narrative: 

This scheme is within the Band A proposals for 21st Century Schools Programme. 

Snagging work continues both internally and externally. Arrangements are being made for 
all remaining works to be finished during the summer holidays. Officers continue to work 
closely with the contractor on a number of key snags. 

The budget continues to be closely monitored as the project comes to an end. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22 £0.391m 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 97



 
 

Rhyl Queens Market Redevelopment 

Total Budget £10.922m  

Expenditure to date £5.307m 

Estimated remaining spend in 21/22 £2.863m 

Future Years estimated spend £2.752m 

Funding WG £7.270m DCC Asbestos £0.252m. DCC 
£3.400m 

Narrative: 

The remaining funding required to deliver Phase 1 was secured from the Council at the 
September 2020 Cabinet meeting and from the January 2021 Welsh Government Capital 
Panel.  

The demolition contractor started on site in January and due to the identification of 
additional asbestos was due to complete the works by early October. Demolition works 
have paused on site currently until structural concerns have been addressed and the 
contractor is satisfied they can bring all of the buildings down in a safe manner. They are 
currently preparing to re-commence the demolition works and the impact of this will 
become clear in the coming weeks but realistically we are looking at completion in 
December. 

The procurement of a contractor for Phase 1 has started with the tender process via the 
North Wales Construction Partnership framework starting June 16th. We are aiming to 
secure Planning permission for the development at the September 8th Committee and the 
construction will commence straight after the demolition has completed. 

 

 

 

 

.  

 

 

 

 

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22 £3.145m 

Page 98



 
 

Waste Service Remodelling 

Total Budget £16.430m  

Expenditure to date £3.272m 

Estimated remaining spend in 21/22 £4.230m 

Future Years estimated spend £8.928m 

Funding WG £9.345m , DCC £7.085m 

Narrative: 

A number of work streams are being taken forward to include: 

 Development of a new single central waste transfer station depot on land adjacent 
to the Colomendy Industrial Estate in Denbigh. The Phase 1 Enabling Works 
Contract commenced on site on July 5th. Phase 1 will be followed by a further 
Tender process to appoint a Contractor of deliver Phase 2 to complete the 
development of the new Depot by spring 2023 to support a subsequent roll out of 
the proposed new service model in 2023. 
 

 Specification of the new fleet required to support the new model is being 
completed following a number of trials / tests with the aim to undertake a 
procurement exercise for the new waste collection vehicles at the appropriate time 
in late 2021 / early 2022 with delivery of the new fleet anticipated in the three 
months leading up to the planned new service roll out. 
 

An Options Appraisal exercise on the detail of the new recycling container design has 
been undertaken, with the new service model and supporting Containers presented to 
Scrutiny in May 2021. A procurement exercise for the Containers to support the new 
model will be undertaken in due course with a delivery schedule in time for roll out 
associated with proposed service change. A number of mobilisation and communication 
activities are ongoing to prepare for the service change and include developing the new 
collection routes; planning for any staffing changes/requirements and ongoing 
engagement and communication with stakeholders and residents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22 £4.603m 

Page 99



 
 

East Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme 

Total Budget £27.528m  

Expenditure to date £15.995m 

Estimated remaining spend in 21/22  £5.958m 

Future Years estimated spend £5.575m 

Funding WG £23.400m; DCC £4.128m 

Narrative: 

The ongoing coastal defence scheme at East Rhyl will provide an improved standard of flood 
protection for around 1650 properties. 

Work on site continues to progress well and is on time and within budget. The rock 
revetment work is complete, providing a significant improvement to the standard of flood 
protection in East Rhyl. The three new beach accesses are complete. Work to demolish the 
existing sea wall is complete, and the placement of the new sea wall units is now also 
complete. Work on building the new promenade is around 20% complete. 

 

 

 

 

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 21/22 £7.250m 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 100



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

21 Sept 1 External Enveloping and Energy 
Efficiency Framework for 
Council Housing 

To award suppliers to the 
framework 

Yes Councillor Tony Thomas / 
Christopher Morris / Glyn 
Forsdick 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

19 Oct 1 Replacement LDP revised 
Delivery Agreement and Covid 
Impact Assessment 

To seek Cabinet approval for 
revisions to the Replacement 
LDP Delivery Agreement and 
accompanying Covid19 
impact assessment  for 
submission to Welsh 
Government 

Yes Councillor Mark Young / 
Angela Loftus 

 2 Replacement LDP - Report 
back on Preferred Strategy 
consultation 

Replacement LDP Preferred 
Strategy consultation and 
seek approval for 
subsequent proposed 
amendments to the Preferred 
Strategy 

Yes Councillor Mark Young / 
Angela Loftus 

 3 Queen’s Buildings Rhyl Project To seek approval to award a Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 7



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

contract for the delivery of 
Phase 1 of the Queens 
Building Rhyl 

Russell Vaughan 

 4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

23 Nov 1 Corporate Plan Update: July to 
September 2021 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the 
Corporate Plan 2017 – 2022 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Iolo McGregor 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

14 Dec 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

P
age 102



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

Cabinet’s attention 

      

      

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

September 7 September October 5 October November 9 November 
 
Updated 05/07/2021 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES
	5 LLANGOLLEN 2020 CASTLE STREET IMPROVEMENT SCHEME
	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendices A and B
	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendix C
	Llangollen 2020 - WIA - July 2021
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Summary for each Sustainable Development principle
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	A resilient Denbighshire
	A healthier Denbighshire
	A more equal Denbighshire
	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	A globally responsible Denbighshire



	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendix D1
	Sheets and Views
	SHEET 1


	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendix D2
	Sheets and Views
	SHEET 2


	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendix D3
	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendix E
	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendix F
	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendix G1
	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendix G2
	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendix G3
	LLANGOLLEN 2020 - Appendix H

	6 FINANCE REPORT
	FINANCE REPORT - App 1 Revenue Summary
	FINANCE REPORT - App 2 Service Variance Narrative
	FINANCE REPORT - App 3 Capital Plan Summary
	FINANCE REPORT - App 4 Major Projects Update

	7 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

